SBI Global Factors Ltd
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

: (% in Lakhs)
Particulars Mote No. March 31, 2021 March 31, ZDE
ASSETS
{1) |Financial Assets
(a) |Cash and cash equivalents 2 972 187
(B) |Loans 3 1,22,572 1,13,8956
(e} [Investments 4 0 0
{d} |Other Financial assets 2 1,717 3,001
1,25,261 1,17,144
{2) |Mon-financial Assets
{a) |Current tax assets (Net) 6 &04 Ba3
(b} |Deferred tax Assets (Net) 7 4,616 5,431
() |Property, Plant and Equipment 8 1,099 1,231
{d) [Cther Intangible assets & L] 11
(e} |Other non-financial assets 9 283 340
6,508 7.B63
Total Assets 1,31,769 1,25,007
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
{1) |Financial Liabilities
{a) |Debt Securities 10 57,675 57,222
{b) |Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 11 36,674 31,726
(c) |Other financial liabilities 12 1,231 1,757
95,580 90,705
2. |Non-Financial Liabilities
{a) |Provisions 13 254 201
(b) |Other non-financial liabilities 14 852 855
1,106 1,057
3. |[EQUITY
(a) |Equity Share capital 15 15,989 15,989
{b) [Other Equity 16 19,0594 17,256 |
35,083 33,245
Tolal Liabilities and Equity 1,31,769 1,25,007

Significant accounting policies farming
part of the financial statements

See accompanying notes forming part of

the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Vyas & Vyas
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000590

L=
Sachin Vyas '
Partner
M.No. 419656

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29 April 2021

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29 April

2021

imbkar -+
Company Secretary
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SEBEI Global Factors Ltd

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

(% inm Lakhs)
% Year ended Year ended
|_ Particulats Mote March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue from operations :
{i} |interest income 17 9,827 10,316
(i) |Fees and commission income 18 ELir 344
(1§} [Sale of services 19 476 505
{iv) |Others 20 a2 514
(v} |Reversal of provision 21 2,rag 7,257
{1} |Total revenue from operations 13,556 18,936
{2} |Other income 195 1E8
{3} |Total income 13,751 19,124
-
Exponses :
{i} |Fimance costs 22 a,543 b, 184
(i) |Fees and commission expense 23 109 140
|Met loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost
(i) |category 24 4,234 6,672
{v} |Employee bencfits expenses 25 1,089 o963
{v) |Depreciation, amaortization and impairment ] 232 259
[wi} |Dthers expenses 26 B72 879
({4} |Total expenses 11,079 15,096
(5) |Profit / [lgss) before exceptional ibems and Lax 2,672 4,028
(6) |Exceptional items
{7} |Profit/(loss) before tax 2,672 4,028
(8) |Tax Expense:
Current Tax / Tax for previous year 7 234
Deferred Tax B18 2,117
(9) [Profit / {loss) for the period from continuing operations 1,847 1,677
(10} |Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations z =
(11) [Tax Expense of discontinued operations
{12) |Profit{{loss) from discontinued operations{After tax) .
{13) [Profity(loss) for the year 1,847 1,677
(14) [Other Comprehensive Income
(i} Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or los: (13} (35)
(i) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 4 10
Subtotal (A) (9) (24)
(i} Items that will be reclassified to profit or koss . T
{ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or los: =
Subtotal (B) * -
Other Comprehensive Income (A + B) (2) (24)
(15) |Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,838 1,652
{16) |Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations) 31
Basic {In Rs.) 1.15 1.05
Giluted {In As.} 1.15 1.05
Significant accounting policies forming part of the financial statements
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
Fur Vyas B Vyas
Chartered Accountants_.
Firm Registration No. 000590C B
i
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SB1 Glabal Factors Ltd

Staternent of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended March 34, 2021

A. Equity Share Capital
{¥ in Lakhs}
Maovement during Asat
A fl, 202
AT Aok 200 the Year st March, 2021
15,989 - 15,589
B. Other Equity
(¥ in Lakhs)
Reserves & Surplus
Cthar itema of
Capital Other Comprehensive
Particulars Securities Retained Transition impairment Tatal
Redemption Reserve Fund® General Reserve Income [Employes
Rasarve Premium Reserve Eamings reserve Reserve # Benefit
Balance as at Tst April, 2020 1,000 E81E 693 10,569 {24,380 [633) 2,196 {25] 17,258
Transfar to Resenes ws, 45-1C of RBI Acl. 1834 370 {370 = e A e B
Dividend - 3 7 — — L -
Profit for the year 1.847] 3 [ 1,837
Balance as ot 315t March, 2021 1,000 7186 21,893 10,568 {22,883} (633} 2,158 (34} 18,004

* A5 required by seclion 45-1C of the RBI Act 1934, the Company maniains a reserve fund and fransfess there in & sum not less than twenly per cant of s net prolit evary year as disclosed in the stalerment of profit and loss and b=farg

any dnidend is declared. The Comgpany cannot appropriate any sum fram the reserve fund except for the purpese specified by Resense Bank of India Trom time to ime. Till date RE| has rot soecified any purpase for appropristion of
Resenve fund maintained under section 4510 of REI Act, 1524
# Created in accordance win The Resara Benk of india circular no, 1092210 108/2019-20 dated 13h March 2020,

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Yyas & Vyas
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No, 000590C

L

Sachin Vyas
Partner
M.Mo. 419658

Flace : Mumbal
Drate = 29 April 2021

Pank i
nancial & Risk D

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29 April 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Nandan Nimbkar
Cofipany Secratary

ant Kumar Pammi
Managing §rector & CED
DiM :- uigams



SBl GLOBAL FACTORS Lid

See pcmmparvinn notes to the financial statements

Cash Flow Sttement for the Year Ended March 31, 2021 {®in Lakhs)
March 31, 2021 _March 31, 2020
Cash Flow frofn Operating Activities:
Met Profil befone Tax 2672 4,078
Adjustments fpr:
Depraciation | Amortisation 232 258
Irlerest Cost 1,664 1,542
Duscaunt on issue of Commescial Pape 2,840 4,082
Amorisation of|Foreard Premium e -
Sundry Balance Witten Off [ 0
Foreign Excharlge ((anyloss (Net) 12} Z
(Profit] { Loss op Sale of Fixed Assels (0 o
Liatebies no lofger required Wintlen Back (8} (5)
Impasrment of gseats {2, B00) (T, 257
Bad Debis n Ot 4234 6672
Provasion lor Leave Encashiment 41 5
Provision for Graluity 27 £8
Frofit on Sale of Current fnvesiments (59) a2y
OCH Imypact (13} {35}
G048 | * 5639
Operating profjt before Working Capital changes T2 0,666
Increase ! {De ) in Debt Secunties [4,931) 266
Increase | (Decsease) in Borrowsngs (Cther than Deibd Securitins) (2,581} 3401
(Increase) | Dedgrease in Olher Financial Liabilibes (611) {703)
lIncrease ( (Deciease]) in Provisions {15) 51
Inireasa | || ase) in Other Mon Financial Liabiities 6 1251)
(Increase)/Cecrease in Other Mon - Financial Assats 63 13
{Increase)/Decréase in Other Financial Assets 1,284 {345)
(Increase)iDecrease in Loans {10.049) (704
{16,835) 1,126
Cash (usedlgeperated in and from Operating Activities [8,115) 10,793
Direct Taxes (L] 332 41
HNEI Cash [use erated in and from Operating Activities |A) [7.783] 10,834
Cazh Flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of Food Assets {33} {30
Sale of Fixed A 24 [+
Purchase of Investments (3,85, 995) (346,680}
Sale of Current Investments 3,87 054 346,772
Met cash from | ting Activities (B) 50 52
Cash Flow Financing Activities:
Irierest Cost {1.779) [1,852)
Discounl on issue of Commercial Faper (2.641) (4, 000)
Premium on F Caontract (93] -
Repaymen of Leans {1,13.241) (1,19,809)
Loan Taken 1,220,772 117413
Commencial Paper Repaid {1,50,000) (2,70, 500)
Commescial Paper Taken 1,55.500 2.73,000
Met Cash generated from Financing Activities (C) 8,518 14,8448]
Met increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B+ C} TES {3,963)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at March -21 /March - 20
Casslhi i Hanid 1 1
Stamp in Hand - -
Cash & Bank Balances in Current Account with Banks 971 186
072 187
ll_ess: Cash and (ash Equivalens as at Mar-20Mar-19 187 4,148
t
TS 13,963}
Mote :
1. Cash Flow Statement has been reported using the Indirec Mothod.
2-54 '.I\

As per our repdrt of even date

For Vyas & Wy
Chartered Accduntants

Firm Registratipn Mo, 000530

ety

Sachin Vyas
Partner
M.Mo, 415658

Place : Mumbal
| Date : 29 April 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of




jii.

(A) Signifi

1.1: Corporgte Information:
SBI Global Factors Ltd ('SBIGFL' or the 'Company'), a Public Limited Company, incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (as amended by the Companies Act, 2013, is a subsidiary of 5tate Bank

of India, is
and Export Factoring services under one roof. It is headquartered in Mumbai with 09 Branches across India.

on-Banking Financial Company regulated by Reserve Bank of India. SBIGFL provides Domestic

1.2 Signiﬁc nt Accounting Policies, Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions:

nt Accounting Policies:

| Compliance with Ind-AS

The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting
Standards [‘Ind-AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the
Compapies (Indian Accounting Standards]) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other relevant
provisipns of the Act. Any directions issued by the RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when
they befcome applicable,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to the existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use

ii. Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared
and pr¢sented in the format prescribed in the Division 11T of Schedule 111 to the Act. The Statement of
Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of IND AS 7 "Statement of Cash
Flows"|The Company presents its Balance Sheet in the order of liguidity.

Basis of preparation of Ind-AS Financial Statements:

The Firancial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instrunjents and certain employee benefit assets are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting

period, jas explained in the accounting policies below.

Fair value is the price that would be received on sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
prderly| Liansuctivn between markel parlicipants at e meusutement date, 1epardless of whether that
price is|directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an agset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market |participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the mepsurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind

$ 17 dnd measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net

Icaljmﬂ le value in Ind AS Z or value in use in Ind AS 36.

n addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized within the fair

value

Hierarchy into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
Fments are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its
Swhich are described as follows: =




iv.

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

the entity can access at the measurement date;
Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for

the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
= Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest
Lakhs except when otherwise stated.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized-to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the amount is received.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into account
contractually defined terms and excluding taxes collected on behalf of government,

Ind AS 115 addresses the recognition of revenue from customer contracts and impacts on the amounts
and timing of the recognition of such revenue. The standard introduced a five-step approach to revenue
recognition

- Identifying the contract;

- identifying the performance obligations in the contract;

- determining the transaction price;

- allocating that transaction price to the performance obligations; and

- finally recognizing the revenue as those performance obligations are satisfied.

Rendering of Services

The Company recognizes revenue when control over the promised services is rendered to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those services,

The Company recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the services are rendered to

customer i.e. Recognition of Facility Set-Up Fees/ Facility Continuation fees:

New Sanction
Facility Set up fees is charged for the period from the date of sanction to end of financial year, in which

account is sanctioned and are recognized as income only when there is reasonable certainty of its
recelpt after executlon of documents,

Facility Continuation Fees(FCF):

Facility Continuation Fees is charged in the month of May on the basis of the sanctioned/ capped limits
on the core factoring facilities which are current as at 1st April of that financial year. It is calculated for
the entire financial year on all live Standard core accounts. 1st of May will be deemed as the date of
accrual of the FCF . However, in case the account is in dormant mode, or NPA, FCF will be recognized

only when the same is realized.

Facility Set-Up fees on enhancement or adhoc limits:
The facility set-up fee is charged and recognized as income, only when there is reasonable certainty of its
receipt after execution of documents and at the time of first factoring under the enhanced/adhoc core

limit.

Discount charges and interest on advances:
Discount charges and interest on advances are accrued on time basis on the balances in the prepayment

accounts at the applicable discount/ interest rates. Factoring charges are accrued on factoring debts at
the applicable rates.
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V.

vi.

vil.

Functional currency
The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic

environment in which it operates. The Company has accordingly assessed INR as its functional currency.
The transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency for the month are recorded at
the exchange rates prevailing on the previous month end rate.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange al the reporting date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the dates when fair value was determined. Non-monetary items measured al
histaric cost are not translated.
In case of assets and liabilities covered by forward contracts, the forward premium is recognized over
the life of the Contract and the difference between the year-end rate and rate on date of contract is
recognized as exchange difference, Exchange difference arising on monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise,

|
Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs includes interest, commission/brokerage and exchange differences arising from
tnrmg currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as adjustment to interest cost. Interest
c‘xpenses is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the Effective
Interest Rate (EIR) applicable. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and allocating interest expenses over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition,

|
Employee Benefits
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting
date. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset
ceiling| (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the
statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the
year in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is
recognised in profit or loss in the year of a plan amendment or when the Company recognises
corresponding restructuring cost whichever is earlier. Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as
follows:

. service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on

curtailments and settlements);
- netinterest expense or income; and

«  re-measurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item
‘Employee benefits expenses’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the statement of financial position represents the actual
deficit or surplus in the Company's defined benelit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is
limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or
reductions in future contributions to the plans.




viii.

A liahility for a termination henefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can no longer
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognizes any related restructuring

COSts,|

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick
leave in the year the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liahilities recognized in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present
value pf the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date. =

Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current Taxes
Current income tax is the amount of expected tax payable based on taxable profit for the year as

determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of Tncome Tax Act, 1961,

Deferred Taxes
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilitjes in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, Deferred tax assets
are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits; will be available against which those deductible temporary difference can be utilized . Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting year and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part

of the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized , or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority. i

Minimum Alternate Tax (MA1) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which give future
econontic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as a deferred
asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is
recognized as an assel in the Balance Sheet when it is probable that the future economic benefit
associated with it will flow to the Company.

Current and Deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they are relating to items that are
recognized in the other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net

basis.




ix.

Propgrty, plant and equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are recorded at their cost of acquisition, net of refundable taxes or

levies,|less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost thereof comprises of its
purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly
attribytable cost lor bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefifs are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on disposal or
ent of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale
5 and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
ty, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use for administrative purposes, are stated

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment
nized in the financial statements on transition i.e. April 01, 2018 to Ind AS, measured as per the

freehold land] less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight - line method as per the
useful life prescribed in the Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, except in respect :

Sr.No | | Assel Description B Useful life as per management estimates
1 Furniture & Fixtures * 5

2 Vehicles * - ;

3 Computer Hardware (Servers & Network] * 3

*For these class of assets based on internal assessment the management believes that the useful life as
given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets. Hence the
useful life for these assets is different from the useful life as prescribed in Part C of Schedule 11 of The
Companies Act, 2013

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the lease

The Company reviews Lhe residual value, uselul lives and depreciation method annually and, if
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting
estimate on a prospective basis.

Lease Accounting as per Ind AS 116
IND AS |116 introduces a single lease accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and

liabilitids for all leases with a term of more than 12 manths, unless the underlying asset value is low,

As per this standard a lease liability is initially recognised and measured at an amount equal to present
value ofjminimum lease payments during the lease term that are not yet paid.

Right ofjuse assel is recognised and measured at cost, consisting of initial measurement of lease liability
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Intangible Assets and amortization thereof:

Intangible assets with finite uspful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognized on a straight-line basis
hased on their estimated usefil lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis, Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried
at cost Jess accumulated impairment losses,

Computer software is amortised over the period of three years on a straight-line basis.

An item of Intangible Asset is|derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amsunt of the asset) is included in
the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized .

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Intangible
Assels recognized as on April 01, 2018 (date of transition) measured as per previous GAAP as its

deemed cost on the date of transition,

Impairment of Property, plant & equipment and intangible assets

At the end of each repurtingTyear, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determing whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can he
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash - generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identifigd.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets

for which the estimates of futu

If the recoverable amount of a
amount, the carrying amount
amount. An impairment loss is

Provisions
Provisions involving substant
Company has a present obligat

cash flows have not been adjusted.

asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

al degree of estimagion in measurement are recognized when the
ion (legal or constructive), as a result of past events, and it is probable

that an outflow of resources, th

t can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation.

The amount recognized as a grovision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the balange sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are

expected to be recovered fro

a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually

certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

The expense relating to a pr
reimbursement.If the effect of

pvision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
s, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting




A Contingent Liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the gccurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not

whaolly within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events that may,

but probably will not, require an outfllow of resources,

Both provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates. Coptingent Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. A
contingent asset is disclosed jn the Financial Statements, where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Onerous contracts
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognized and measured as provisions. An

pnerous contract is considered [to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the cmgumir: benefits expected to be

received from the contract

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial| liabilities are recognized when an entity becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial ljabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or linancial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss arp recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

A. Financial assets

a)Recognition and initial measurement
The Company initially recogniges loans and advances, deposits and debt securities purchased on the

date on which they originate. Purchases and sale of financial assets are recognised on the trade date,
which is the date on which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. In the case of financial assets not recorded at
FVTPL, transaction cests that are directly attributable to its acquisition of financial assets are included
therein,
b)Classification of financial assets
On initial recognition, a finapcial asset is classified to be measured at -
- Amortised cost; or
- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - debt investment; or
- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - equity investment; or
- Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTFL)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated at FVTPL:
- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash

flows; and
» The contractual terms of the| financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

A debt instrwment is classified as FVTOCT only il il meels both of e following conditions and is nul
o T =




- The asset is held wkthin a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash Nows and selling finandial assets; and

. The contractual terms of the financial asset pive rise on specified dates to cash lows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC] category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair '!;alue. Fair value movements are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income
{(OCI), However, the Company [recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain
or loss previously re ! gnised [in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss,
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR
method. I
All equity investments|in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair valug, Equity instruments which are
held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which Ind AS 103 appi:zies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may
make an irrevocable election tq present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair
value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is
made on initial recognition and|is irrevocable.

It the Company decide*:s to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL. There is no recycling of the amounts from
0OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, on sale/disposal the Company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments in¢luded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

otherwise meets the réquirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces and accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains
and losses arising on re-measyrement recognized in statement of profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognized in statement of profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the ‘other income' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized
when: |

- The Company's right to receive the dividends is established,

- Itis probable that the econpmic benefits associated with the dividends will flow to the entity,

. The dividend does not refiresent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of

dividend can be measured reliably.

In addition, on initial r{:cugn%irm, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that

c)Business Model Test:
The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages group of

financial assets to achid:ve its business objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on instrument and instrument basis, but at a higher level

of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

- How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model
are evaluated and reported to the Company's key management personnel;

- The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that

business model) and, !in particular, the way in which those risks are managed.

At initial recognition uJI a finangial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognised financial
assels are part of an existing busginess model or whether they reflect a new business model.
|




d)Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding

The Company assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to identily whether they meet the SPPI
Lest.
'Principal’ for the purpose of| this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change oyer the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of
principal or amortization of the premium/discount)

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies
judgement and considers relevant factors,

Contractual terms that introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are
unrelated to a basic lending afrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices or commodity
prices, do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are SPPL

-

e)Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derccognizes alfinancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when Ft transiers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to :mj:ther party, If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing
for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss if
such gain or loss would have dtherwise heen recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial
asset,

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option
to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the par‘r' it continues to recognize under continuing involvement, and the part it
no longer recognizes on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the Eartying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognized and the
sum of the consideration receil ed for the part no longer recognized and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been rer:t;gnized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss if
such gain or loss would have atherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial
asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis

of the relative fair values of thoge parts.

Modification of contractual cash flows

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified, and the
renegotiation or modification does not result in the derecognition of that financial asset, the Company
recalculate the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and shall recognize a modification gain or
loss in profit or loss. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset shall be recalculated as the present
value of the renegotiated or madified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate [(or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated
credit- impaired financial assets) or, when applicable, the revised effective interest rate. Any costs or
fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are amortised over the

remaining term of the modified financial asset




f) Impairment of {inancial assets

The Company applies the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for recognising impairment loss on financial

assets, The Company applies a three-stage approach for measuring ECL for the following categories of

financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss:

debt instruments measured at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive

income; and
s financial guarantee contracts.

No ECLis recognized on equity investments,

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default

occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to

the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive

[i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate [or credit-adjusted effective

interest rate for purchased or griginated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash

flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,

extension, call and similar optigns) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

Financial assets migrate through the following three stages based on the change in credit risk since

initial recognition:

Stage 1: 12-months ECL
The Company assesses ECL on éxposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk

since initial recognition and that were not credit impaired upon origination. For these exposures, the
Company recognises as a cnlleﬁiw provision the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the
probability of default events occurring within the next 12 months. The Company does not conduct an
individual assessment of exposures in Stage 1 as there is no evidence of one or more events occurring
that would have a detrimental impact on estimated future cash flows.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired
The Company collectively assesses ECL on exposures where there has been a significant increase in

credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit impaired. For these exposures, the Company
recognises as a collective provision, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting the remaining lifetime of the financial
asset). Similar to Stage 1, the Company does not conduct an individual assessment on Stage 2 exposures
as the increase in credit risk is not, of itself, an event that could have a detrimental impact on future cash

Mows,

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit impaired

The Company identifies, both cl}llfctwely and individually, ECL on those exposures that are assessed as
credit impaired based on whether one or more events, that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime
ECL is recognised as a collective or specific provision, and interest revenue is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount,

Determining the stage for impairment !
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
for exposures since initial recagnition by comparing the risk of default eccurring over the remaining
expected life from the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort for
this purpaose, This includes quantitative and qualitative information and also, forward-looking analysis.
An exposure will migrate thruu$h the ECL stages as asset guality deteriorates. If, in a subsequent period,
assel quality improves and also|reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk since
origination, then the provision for impairment losses reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-months ECL.
Exposures that have not deterigrated significantly since origination are considered to have a low credit
risk. The prﬂmsmn for impairment losses for these financial assets is based on a 12-months ECL. When
ncollectible, it is written off against the related provision, Such assets are written off after all
X : been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
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changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either
begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities, For financigl assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the busingss model for managing those assets, Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business model
as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such
changes are evident to external|parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either
begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the
first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company
does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or

interest,
Prfginal Revised Accounting treatment
classification Classification B

Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Amortised cost FVTRL Difference between previous amortized cost and
fair value is recognised in Statement of Profit and

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
FVTPL Amortised Cost  new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated
ibased on the new gross carrying amount.

Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost and
fair value is recognised in OCL. No change in EIR
due to reclassification.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
mew amortised cost carrying amount. However,
FVTOCI Amortised cost  |cymulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against
fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as
if it had always been measured at amortised cost.
Fair value at reclassilication date becomes its
new carrying amount. No other adjustment is

Amortised cost FVTQOCI

FVTPL FVTOCI

Assets continue to be measured at fair value.

L Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
0C] is reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss
at the reclassification date.

FVTOCI FVTP

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

1) Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments|issued by a company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

2] Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any cpntract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of diregtly attributable transaction costs.

3) Financial liabilities
Finangial liabilities are classifipd as measured at amortised cost or 'FVTPL"




XV,

A Financial Liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or it is a derivative
(that does not meet hedge accounting requirements) or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

« It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

« on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

= it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

. - “g b I #
» such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise;

= the financial liability forms part of a proup of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

« it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the
entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109,

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurementrecognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in
the 'ather gains and losses' line item in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

4] Other financial liabilities:
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

5) Derecognition of financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss

Cash and Cash Equivalent: !

Cash and cash equivalent in balance sheet comprise of cash at bank, cash on hand and short term highly
liquid investments and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value,

Earnings Per Share:
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the year attributable

to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for events
including a bonus issue, bonus element in right issue to existing sharcholders, share split, and reverse
share split (consolidation of shares).

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss after tax as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income [net of any attributable taxes) relating to the




xvi.

xvii.

xviii.

dilutive potential equity shares by weighted average no of equity shares year which are adjusted for the
eflects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Statement of Cash Flow
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the

elfects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
sepregated based on the available information,

Commilments
Commitments are future liabilitics for contractual expenditure, The commitments are classified and

disclosed as follows:
i The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided

for; and o
i, Other non-cancellable commitments, it any, to the extent they are considered material and

relevant in the opinion of the Management.

Segment Reporting
The Company is primarily enagaged in the business of financing and there are no separate reportable

segments identified as per the Ind AS 108 -Segment Reporting,

1.3 Key Estimates and Judgements:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards ["IND AS")
requires the management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and
assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Accounting estimates could change from period to period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the
actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialise.

Determination of Expected Credit Loss ["ECL")
The measurement of impairment losses (ECL) across all categories of financial assets requires

judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows based on
Company's historical experience and collateral values when determining impairment losses along with
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors,
changes in which can result in different levels of allowances,

Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:
Bifurcation of the financial assets into different portfolios when ECL is assessed on collective basis.
Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

. Development of ECL models, including choice of inputs / assumptions used,
¢

Fair Value Measurements
In case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in financial statements the

company uses the quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or based on inputs which are
observable either directly or indirectly for determining the fair value. However in certain cases, the
Company adopts valuation techniques and inputs which are not based on market data. When Market
pbservable information is not available, the Company has applied appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the valuation model.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circomstances and for which
sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs. p—
o e,




V.

Income Taxes
The Company's tay jurisdiction is in India. Significant judgements are involved in determining the

provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for certain tax positions,

Evaluation of Business Model

Classification and measurement of financial instruments depends on the results of the solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding ("SPP1") and the business model test. The
Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how the Company's financial
instruments are managed together to achieve a particular business objective.The Company monitors
financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the
reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part
of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining
financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been
a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those instruments.

Provisions and Liabilities

Provisions and liabilities are recognised in the period when they become probable that there will be an
outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events that can be reasonably estimated. The timing
of recognition requires judgment to existing facts and circumstances which may be subject to change.




SBI Global Factors Ltd

MNotes forming part of the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2021

NOTE 2

Cash and cash equivalents = (¥ in Lakhs)
Eaitical As at
i i March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(i) Cash on hand 1 1
(i} Balances with Banks 971
{of the nature of cash and cash equivalents) 186
Total 972 187
NOTE 3 “
Loans {¥ in Lakhs)
. As at
Eertiears March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(A)
(i} Loans - at amortised cost
- Factoring 1,37,598 1,22,592
hers
- Gold Pool 297 9 487
Total - Gross (A) 1,37,895 1,32,079
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance (Expected Credit Loss)
(15,323) {18,123)
Total - Net (A) = 1,22,572 1,13,956
B)
Ei} Secured by tangible assets 4,564 5,651
(ii) Secured by intangible assets 34,623 55,062
(iil} Unsecured 98,708 71,326
Total - Gross (B) 1,37,895 1,32,079
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance (Expected Credit Loss)
{15,323) (18,123)
Total - Net (B) 1,22,572 1,13,956
(C)
(1} Loans in India 1,37,895 1,32,079
Taotal - Gross (C) (i) 1,37,895 1,32,079
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance (Expected Credit Loss)
(15,323) {18,123)
Total - Net (C) (i) 1,22,572 1,13,956
(ii) Loans outside India - =
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance (Expected Credit Loss)
Total - Net (C) (ii) ¢ - =
Total (C ) (i+ii) 1,22,572 1,13,956

No loans are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, or from firms
or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.




NOTE 4

INVESTMENTS (% in Lakhs)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Amocrtised At Fair Value At Total Amortised At Fair Value At Total
Investments cost Through profit Deemed Cost cost Through profit Deemed
or loss or loss Cost
Mutual Funds . = - -
Equity Shares of SBI Foundation Fellow
Subsidiary (1,000 Equity Shares @ Rs. 10/ 8] 4] ¥] 0
each)
JMFARC - IRIS December 2016 - Trust
(Security Receipt of JM Financial Asset 383 383 383 383
Reconstruction Company Private Limited)
Total — Gross (A) 383 383 383 383
Impairment (383) (383) {383) (383)
Total - Net (A} 0 0 0 0
(i1 Investments outside India - > = =
(ii} Investments in India 0 L] L1 1]
Total (B) 0 0 0 0




NOTE 5
Other Financial Assets (¥ in Lakhs)
. As at
sipin (904 March 31, 2021 ‘March 31, 2020
Security Deposits 246 248
Collection Receivable From Muthoot 1,429 2,739
Other Receivable 42 14
Total 1,717 3,001
MNOTE 6
Current Tax Assets {Net) (% in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Advance tax and tax deducted at source
{Net of provision for tax) 504 843
Total 504 843
NOTE 7
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) (% in Lakhs)
. As at
i March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Deferred Tax Asset 4,616 5,431
Total 4,616 5,431




Mote 8 : Property Plant and Equipment And Intangible Asszets

{in Lakhs)
Description of Assets Buildings Right of use | Computers Office Furniture Leasehold Tangibles Intanaibles Total assets
Building Equipment [and Fixtures| Improvemeants Total Assets
Software
1. Gross Block
Balancessat March 31,2020 [ 740 697 55 18 132 5 1,526 20 1,547
Additions - 8BS 23 ] 2 2 117 117
Other -Deductions/Adjustments 3 124 12 B 1 = 145 - 145
Balance as at March 31, 2021 740 658 66 16 13 7 1,498 20 1,519
I1I. Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2020 33 214 a8 4 3 3 295 9 304
Depreciation expenze for the period 17 1BE 16 5 3 1 226 B 232
Other -Deductions/Adjustments - 105 4 3 1 - 122 = 122
Balance as at March 31, 2021 50 291 50 1 5 3 399 15 215
Carrying Value 690 367 16 15 -] L) 1,099 5 1,104
ch31.2021

At March 31, 2020 707 483 17 14 B 2 1,231 11 1,242




NOTE 3|

Other Non-Financial Assets (% in Lakhs)
FAl! As at

i i March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Indirect Tax Credit a6 109
Fre-paid expenses 47 &0
Advance paid to CERSA] a 0
Advance to employees 9 11
Others® 141 166
Total 283 346
*Rs 140 lakhs pertains to payment made to SBI for salary to deputed staff against which invoices are not
received |

MNOTE 10

Debt Securities

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at

March 31, 202%

March 31, 2020

- At Amortised Cost
(1) UNSECURED:
MNon Cﬂnviertitrle Debentures - Listed™
{2) UNSECURED:
Commercial Papers #
Total (A) (1+2)
Debt securities in India
[Debt securities cutside India
Total (B)
* Includes issue expenses amortised as per EIR

5,908 14,988
47,677 42,234
57,675 57,222

57,675 57,222
57,675 57,222

Mon-convertible debentures and any other borrowings are not guaranteed by any of directors and/or others.

Maturity Profile of Non-Convertible Debentures (% in Lakhs)
L = As at March
. Description Date of Maturity 31. 2071
10 Years Unsecured Subordinated Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures 2011-12 (Series - SBIGFL - 09) of July 29, 2021 10,000
s 10 Lakhs each
Adjustments on account of effective rate of interest {2)
Total 9,998
Maturity Profile of Non-Convertible Debentures {Zin Lakhs)
As at March
Description Date of Maturity e
10 Years Unsecured Subordinated Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures 2011-12 (Series - SBIGFL - 09) of July 29, 2021 10,000
B 1{) |l akhs pach
10 Years Unsecured Subordinated Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures 2010-11 (Series - SBIGFL - 08) of August 25, 2020 5,000
Es. 10 I akhs gach
Adjustrments on account of effective rate of interest {12)
| Total 14,988
# The Detalls of Commercial Papers are as under (% in Lakhs}
. As at March
Particulars Date of Maturity 31, 2021
ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund - CP June 17, 2021 5,000
HDFC Mutual Fund - CP May 06, 2021 10,000
HDFC Mutual Fund - CP June 24, 2021 11,0040
HOFC Mutual Fund - CP June 29, 2021 9,000
ILBSF Mutual Fund - CP April 26, 2021 5,000
ILESF Mutwal Fund - CP April 15, 2021 5,000
Invesco Mutual Fund - CP April 15, 2021 3,000
Adiustments on account of effective rate of interest (323)
Total 47,677
(% in Lakhs)
X i As at March
Particulars Date of Maturity 31 2020
HOFC Mutual Fund - CP April 28, 2020 9,
HDFC Mutual Fund - CP May 19, 2020 10,000
HDFC Mutwal Fund - CP May 22, 2020 5,500
Birla Mutual Fund - CP April 24, 2020 5,500
Birla Mutual Fund - CP May 20, 2020 5,000
Tata Mutual Fund - CP April 27, 2020 7,500
I Adjustments on account of effective rate of interest (266)
Total 42,234




NOTE 11

Total (B)

from Parent Company - State Bank of India (SBI)

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) (% in Lakhs)
Particulars A8 L
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
- At Amortised Cost
UNSECURED
(a) Term Loans
(i} from Banks - -
(b} Loans from Related Party # 36,674 31,726
Total (A) 36,674 31,726
Borrowings in India - 23,772
Borrowings outside India 674 7,954
SHo Se674 —51.7%%

# Includes Loan (Foreign Currency Cash Credit, Working Capital Demand Loap, Short term loan Facility) taken

{¥ in Lakhs)
e . As at March
Description Date of Maturit
e b ok 31, 2021
Working Capital Demand Loan from SEI May 13, 2021 5,000
Working Capital Demand Loan from SBI May 24, 2021 5,000
Working Capital|Demand Loan from SBEI May 27, 2021 10,000
Working Capital|Demand Loan from SBI June 11, 2021 12,000
Bank Overdraft Facility from SBI - 60
r u dit Loan
(USD 29.29 lakhs ,GBP 6.24 lakhs, EUR 21.49 lakhs) - 4,614
Total 36,674
{¥ in Lakhs)
i : As at March
Description Date of Maturity 31, 2020
Working Capital Demand Loan from SBI April 07, 2020 6,500
Working Capital Demand Loan from SBI April 09, 2020 10,000
Working Capital Demand Loan from SBI April 13, 2020 5,000
Bank Overdraft facility from SBI - 2,272
Foreign o] cili om
LS 39.24 Lakhs April 03, 2020 2,969
(USD 42.95 lakhs ,GBP 7.57 lakhs, EUR 12.41 lakhs) - 4.985
Total 31,726
- No term loans, external commercial borrowings, commercial paper’and any other borrowing is guaranieed by directors and / or
others
MNOTE 12
Other Financial Liabilities : (Z in Lakhs)
Particulars Az at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
||{a} Interest accrued but not due; 252 429
|(b) Oustanding Expenses 289 264
[{c) Others (spec|fy nature)
Lease Liability 549 703
Book overdraft = -
. Liability against collection of factoring receivables 141
iTutaI 1,231




NOTE 13
(T in Lakhs)

Provisions
. As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{a) Provision fer employee benefits; and 163 106
(b) Others
Ex Gratia Payable 70 70
Provision for GST 21 26
Total ' 254 201
MNOTE 14
Other Mon-financial liabilities {% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(a)} Revenue received in advance; * 813 B25
(b} Others
Statutory liability 39 28
Liability for stale chegue 1 2
Total 852 B55
NOTE 15
Equity (% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{a) Authorised share capital:
BB0,000,000 (Previous Year 180,000,000) Equity Shares of
Rs.10 each BE,000 18,000
120,000,000 (Previous Year 120,000,000) Preference
Shares of Rs.10 each 12,000 12,000
1,00,000 30,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
159,885,365 (Previous Year 159,885,365) Equily Shares of
Rs. 10 each, fully paid-uo 15,989 15,989
15,989 15,989

a. Includes 15,625,000 shares jssued an Right issue of capital in FY 2010-11
b. 13,77,86,585 (Previous Year 13,77,86,585) shares are held by the Holding Company, State Bank of India and

its Nominees.

Disclosure with respect to Shareholding in excess of 5%
% of Issued, MNo. of shares held as
Name of the E:quit'.r Shareholdar Subscrlhi;:d, and Paid on 31.03.2021
[ up Equity Share
Canital
1) State Bank of India 86.18 (86.18) 13,77,86,585
2) Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) 6.53 (6.53) 1,04,44,172
i
Reconciliation of Shares (% in Lakhs)
As at -
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Number of shares at the beginning 15,98,85,365 15,98,85,365
Mumber of shares at the end 15,98,85,365 15,98,85,365

Rights, Preferences and Ristrictions attached to Shares
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share.

Each holder of equity share s entitled to one vote per share.In the event of liquidation of the Company, the
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential ambunts, The distribution will be In proportion te the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders. The holders of equity shares are entitled to dividends, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors
and approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. :




MNOTE 16
Other Equity

(Z in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Capital Redemption Reserves

Opening Balance

Add: Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss
Closing Balance

Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance

Add: Additions during the year
Closing Balance

Reserve Fund *
Opening Balance
Add: Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss

Closing Balance

Impairement Reserve @ #

Opening Balance
Add: Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss

Add: Transfer from General Reserve
Closing Balance
@ Reviewed on hall yearly basis

General Reserve

Opening Balance
Add: Transfer from contingency reserve
Less: Transfer to Impairement Reserve

Closing Balance

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance

Ind AS 116 Impact on opening reserves as on 01.04.2019

Add: Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Less :-

Transfer to Reserve Fund*®
Transfer to Impairement Reserve
Closing Balance

Total

1,000 1,000
1,000 1,000
21,693 21,693

21,693 21,693

6,816 6,481

370 335

7,186 6,816

2,196 -

- 1,341
- 854

2,196 2,196

10,569 11,423

e B54
10,565 10,569
(25,018) (24,817)

2 (176)

1,838 1,652

(23,180) (23,341)
370 335
- 1,341
(23,550) (25,018)
19,094 17,256

* Created in accordance with provision of section 45-1C of The Resenve Bank of India Act, 1934
# Created in accordance with circular no, 109/22.10.106/2019-20 of The Reserve Bank of India dated 13th March 2020




NOTE 17
Interest Income

(¥ in Lakhs)

Year ended

Year ended

Particulars March 31, March 31,
2021 2020
Discount charges 9,827 10,316
Total 9,827 10,316
NOTE 18
Fees & Commission Income (% in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2021 2020
Processing Charges 362 344
Total 362 344
NOTE 19
Sale of Service * (Z in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2021 2020
Factoring Charges 476 505
476 505
NOTE 20
Others (Z in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2021 2020
Bad Debts Recovery in Written off Accounts g2 514
Total 92 514
NOTE 21
Reversal of provision on Financial Instruments (Z in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
L 2021 2020
Loans 2,799 7,257
Total =_2,?99 7,257
NOTE 22
Finance Cost (% in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2021 2020
Interest Expenses on debts classified as amortised
cateqory
MNon-Convertible Redeemable Debentures 1,103 1,377
Short Term Loans (including Cash Credit & Overdraft) 509 402
Discount on Issue of Commercial Papers 2,640 4,092
Interest on Financial Asset Sold - 95
Interest Expense on Lease Liability 52 68
Other Borrowing Costs
EBank Charges 45 60
Credit Rating Fees and Other Charges 96 79
Other Finance Cost 5 g
Forward Premium 93
Foreign Exchange Gain [/ Loss =
Total 4,543




Note 23

Fees and Commission Expense (Zin Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2021 2020
Import Factor Commission 109 140
Total 109 140
MNote 24

Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category

Year ended

Year ended

Particulars March 31, March 31,
| 2021 2020
Loss on Derecognition of Financial Instruments 4,234 6,672
Total 4,234 6,672
NOTE 25
Employee Benefits Expenses (Z in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2021 2020
Salaries and Wages 1,025 881
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 41 35
Staff Welfare Expenses 24 47
Total 1,090 963
NOTE 26
Other Expenses (% in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2021 2020
Rent, Rates and Taxes 48 24
Repairs and Maintenance - Building 23 23
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 125 123
Travelling and Conveyance 62 80
Directors Sitting Fees 31 25
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses 1 5
Communication expense 47 57
Printing and Stationery 9 11
Legal and Professional Charges 197 164
Auditor's foes and expenses 23 23
Electricity Expenses 40 53
Membership and subscription 9 10
Outsourcing Costs S0 51
Security Charges 18 17
Contribution towards CSR activites 2 1
Goods and Services Tax 132 149
Miscellaneous Expenses 55 B4
Total 872 879
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27 Contingent Liabilities :

28

# in Lakhs
| Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debis (1o the extent
ascertainad from the available records) - az
Service Tax matters (under dispute) 57 b
Direct Tax matlers - Income Tax 48 48
Direct Tax maiters - Tax Deducted at Source 0 li]

- 105 137

Note: Future cash eutllows, if any, in respeet of (i) to (iv) above is dependent upon the outcome of judgements /
decisions etc.

There is no claim or proceedings which are pending against the Company which has any financial ocbligations against the
Company. The cases filed against the Company are appeals, either civil or criminal, filed by the Clients arising out of any
civil decree or conviction in Section 138 proceedings. The Company reviews all its cases periodically. No decree or arder
has been passed ageinst the Company which has any financial implication. Since, there is no contingent liability, there is
no provision is required. Since all the civil as well as criminal proceedings are filed by the Company for recovery of its
outstanding dues, the outcome of these pending proceedings will nol have any materially adverse effect on the
Company

The Company has assessed all long term contracts for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Company has
reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law/accounting standards for material foreseeable
losses on such long term contracts has been made in the books of account

Disclosure of sundry creditors under current liabilities is based on the information available with the Company regarding
the status of the suppliers as defined under the "Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" (the Act).

The Company has not received any intimation from “suppliers” regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enferprises Development Act, 2006 and hence the disclosure, if any, relating to the amount unpaid at the year end
together with the interest paid/payable as reguired under the said Act have not been given.

¥in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a i} Principal amount remaining unpaid to suppher under the MSMED
Act 2006 Mil Mil
a ii) Interest on aj (i) above Nil Nil
b i) Amaunt of Principal paid beyond the appointed Date Nil Nil
L) Amount of inlerest paid beyond the appointed date (as per Section
16 of the said Act) Mil il
c ) Amount of Interest due and payable for the penod of delay in making
payment, but without adding the interest specified under section 16 of
the said Act Nil Nil
d) Amount of Interest accrued and due 4 Nil Nil
&) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable Even in
succeeding years Mil Mil

MSME categorization is done based on self declaration made by the parties and no separate confirmation is sought by
the Company in this regards :




% Earnings Per Share:
March 11, 2021 March 31, 2020
réet Profil atiribudable 1o erdinary equity holders @ in Lakhs) = 1,847 1.E77
Profit available o Equily Sharsholders @ in Lakhs) 4] 1,847 1.677
Adjusted Net Profi for Diluted Eamings Per Share (¥ in Lakhs) (B) 1,847 1,677
Weighted average number of Equilty Shares outstanding during the year
[C} 15.88,85,365 15,8885 365
Wielghied average mmmber of Diluted Equity Shares ouistanding dunng the year
{1=]] 15,88 B5 365 156,98 86 365
Nominal Value of Equily Shares (Rs ) ] 10 10
Basic Eamings Per Share (Fs ) (A C) 1.16 1.08
Diluted Eamings Per Share (Fe.} (B) /(D] 115 1.05
30 i Disclosure of Unhedged Exposure of Foreign Currency

The Foreign Cumency Exposures thal have nol been hedged by 8 derivatives instnemenl or otherwise Bs on 315t March, $021 are &5 follows:

Currency Ameunt
Currency Fin Lakhs Fin Lakhs
(a) Assels (Recenshies)
V=] 28 2122
(B2) (6.205)
EUR 21 1,835
(12) {1.02E)
GEF B Bd3
(B} {718}
{b) Liabdity (Fayables)
UsD [] (1]
8 LE]]
EUR 1 4]
(1] {0}
GHP [1] [1]
12 {0
(c} Loans Fayable
us0o 24 2,142
(B2) {6,218}
ELIR il 1.843
(12] {1,027}
GBF [ 529
() (f08)

31 Related Party Disclosures
Mame of Related Party
a Enterprise where control Exits

i Holding Company

State Bank of India [SBI)

Redationship

| Inlding Company

i Fellow Subsidiary Company with whom transactions have taken place during tha year

581 Foundation

581 Mutual Fund Trustee Company Limitea
5B Life Inswrance Company Lid. (SB1 LIFE)
5B General Insurance Lid.

SBICAP Secunties Lid

SBICAP Trusiee Company Limited

Fellow Subsidiary (Mon Benking)
Fellow Subsidiary (Man Banking)
Fellow Subsidiary (Mon Banking)
Fellow Subsdiary (Mon Banking)
Step down Subsidiary
Step down Bubsidiary

b Key Management Personnel/Relatives of Key Management Parsonnel

M, b N Araving Kumas (uple 30t June, 2020
Mr. P. Hemani Kurnas Pammi (woe T 181 July, 2020)
Mr. Fanka| Gupta

Mra, Amila Joshi (upto 30th Now, 2018)

KMr. Mandan Mimbkar (w.e.l. 15 Dec 2019

MD & CECQ

MO & CED

BVP & CFERO
Company Secretary
Company Secretary

c Enterprises over which Key Managgment Personnel (KMP) & his relatives can exercise significant influence

BAr. M W Aravind Kumnar (upto 30th Jure, 2020)
Mr. P, Hemanl Kurmnar Fammi (w.oef 181 July, 2020)
Mr. P, Hernargl Kumngr Pammi (w.e. 18t July, 2020)

Factors Association of India
Faclors Assocalion of india
5B| Glabal Faciors Limited Staff Geatuity Fund

A5 e Coempany has Foreign Currency cutstanding Recevables & Payables which offset each other, the net foreign cumency exposuse is rmimal,




) The Company's relaled party INSAIACKGNE 5o neve i S scooed below
s " n Lokka)
| Associaies | Group Kry Manag Edilafar TVET Grand Total
"H_" Enlerprises Persoanel | Relabives wehich Key
Management
Mature of transaciion Helding g Feliow Subsidiaries Parsonnal [KMP) E his
refatives can exercise
wigmificant influsnce
1 [ﬂmﬂﬁ
Hemunaratiion o MO and CEC * — T i
Frevious Year Jil I = = = [LL] (L)
Remunerabon lo SVP & CRARG" ] [T}
Previcus Year (45 [45]f
Remurermion io Company Sacretary” L] 1
Frevinus Year [RL]] (1]
Salary (Including Pemusts) paid to Deputed Sigir™ 1] (1L
Provieus Year LELT E]i |'5._BI1|
Ottt Fecaiving of Serioes’ Reimbursement of Expenses [T 18 5T4
Prweinu Year 45 15 3 = - 4
i e be? |
an Financial ascets sokd - |
Previcis Year £ 5]
Eanmp Cuty en sale ol TREDE (o 561 = 5 |
Frevious Year 13| 12)}
Slamg duty an investmeni m MF [ 3
Proyious Year -
Bubscryghen | Membership jees T o
Previous Year -
Tofal - Curremt Yaar 1,040 i 114 ] 1,281
Totzl - Freviows Year [ELTH {15} [EEET] - [RELL]
1 INCaNE
Rarefing of Seraces! Reambursemen of Expenkes = P T -
vious Yoar - = (2] ]}
Femnlal Income El []
Previous Year = -
Pt on sale of Lines of Mutual fund 10 - 10
Previous Vear 1] 1]
Tatal - Carrent Yaar 5 10 . - [T}
Todal - Previous Year - 'Ii - {0y IZ]
1_|SHARE CAPITAL
Ehare Capral 13,178
[ Yar {12,779
I =
Share Eremium "Ii\.-‘-il_l’
Previous ¥ear {1643
Total - Carrent Year 30,58 - 30,218
Total - Previows Year [30,218) an, 216}
4 |ASBETS
Aim Recsyable | Advance E] 5 B
|Previous Year I|j| 111) [LF]
L= _ Tl TaT
us rear {'ﬂq 124
Total - Current Year EDD r ] = [
Total - Preskous Year {24] |'I'ﬂ [EE]
& |INVESTMENTE :
Investmenis in shares a L]
Previous Yedr II3||il 0
& |LIABILITY
Lingecired Loand 36574 36,674
Preyvious Year |31, 725! TEENFTT]
Pa T Amounis hie | e Ir FEik | = 236 |
Pravious Yoar | [TELT = [ [RES|
Total - Cument Year 16,507 - ] 35,910
Total - Prewiows Year [31.886] = [5] 31,901)
6 |TRANSACTIONS
Sale of Fland Asssty 1 5 1
Previous Year - - - - -
[Loan Tale=n - - 12 5L HT
Podwious el (1,46 426
m‘.“.’.‘-&ﬂ_ = 1287418
Previais Year [1.47 682
[l | i Bchenes of Motual Fund 44 000
Previous Year 6,000
Fiedemphon of Schames of Myludl Fuid I_I'C!H
ubas [&,001]]




32 Estimated amount of contracts to be executed on capital account not provided for (Net of advances) Rs Nil (Previous Year Rs Nil)

33 Auditors’ Remuneration:

¥ in Lakhs
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
For Statutory Audit 10 10
For Limited Review 5 5
For Tax Audit 3 2
For Other Services (Including certification) 5 4
For Out of pocket expenses - 1
TOTAL 23 23
34 Expenditure In Foreign Currency (On Accrual basis)
¥in Lakhs
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Correspondent Fees 108 140
Membership and Subscription 7 1
Interest on Shorl Term Loans 111 185
CHhers 10 11
TOTAL 237 337
35 Eamnings in Foreign Currency;
Fin Lakhs
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Incame from Factoring :
Interest 134 309
Factoring Charges 174 226
Processing Charges 44 54
Miscellanous Income 0 1
TOTAL 352 589

36 Book value of Investments in Security Receipt

¥ in Lakhs

Backed by NPAs sold by the Company as

Backed by NPAs sold by the other

Total

Particulars underlying banks/FIl NEFC as underlying
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Book  wvalee  of
investments in 383 383 - - =
Less: Provision 383 B3 - = -

Met Value of .

37 Investmente in eecurity receipts

* 100% Provision is held against Investment in Security Receipts

¥ in Lakhs
Particulars SRs issued within | SRs issued more than & years age | SRs issued more than 8 years
past 5 years but within past B years ago
| |Book value of SRs backed by NPAs 383 -
Prowvision held aganst{i) 383 5 -
Backed by NFAs sold by the other
i |banks/FI! NBFC as underlying -
[Provision held against(ii} =
Total (i) * (i) 83 =




38 Taxes on Income:

Income Tax
The companents of income tax expense for the year ended 3151 March 2021 and year ended 3131 March
2020 are
Fin Lakhs
Parliculars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current Tax
In respect af Curren Year - 234
In respect of price years T -
Deferred Tax
In respect o of Current Year 818 2117
Tatal Income Tax expense recognised in statement of
profit and loss g24 2351
OC] Section
Remeasurement af the defined benefit labiites 4 10
Income lax charges to OCI 4 10 -
Reconciliation of the total charge:
A reconcliston between the fax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic fax rate for
the year ended 3151 March 2021 and year ended 315t March 2020 &5 as follows
¥in Lakhs
[Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Accounting profit befone tax 2672 4,028
Income fax expense caloulaled al 25.12% (Previous Year
28.12%:) TTE 1472
Adjustrments In respect of current income tax of previous
yeir T 134
Defered tax asscts on losses not recognised 36 B34
Others 4 10
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and
loss 825 2,351
The Company has ekectod not o exercise the option permitted under Section 1158A4 of the Income-tax Act,
1961, as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2018, Accordingly, the Company has
rocognised provision for incom tax for the year ended 31 March 2020 and measured its deferred tax assais
basis the rate prescabed in the section 11584 of the Income Tax Act. 1961,
Movemant in Deferred Tax (Asseis) | Liabilities
Fin Lakhs
March 11, 2021
! (DTA} ! DTL A= at | Statement of Profit (DTA}/DTL As at
Farticulars April 01, 2020 and Loss o March 31, 2021
Fixed Assel temporary differepce on accoumt of Depreciation
and Amortisaton ¥4 5 B3
Bonus Disallowed due 1o non-payment (20} = (20
Provisian for Gratuity (18} (B) (26)
Provision for Leave Encashment (13} {8) 121)
Provision for Expenses {1) (1} (2}
Frowsion tor doubttul debts on Non Pedorming Investments {111) - {1171}
Imprirement Allwances of Financal Assets 156,277) B1b [4.462)
Adpustrents pertsining to Income and expense recogriion
based on Expected |nferest rate (4 0 ()
Leases (B4) 11 (53)
Others - OCH 5 4 (43 =
Total {5,430 ) B8 ﬂ [4,617)
P in Lakhs
March 31, 2020
[DTA)/DTL As at | Statement of Profit (DTA) | DTL As at
Particulars April 04, 2018 and Loss ocl March 31, 2020
Fixed Asset lemporary diference on account of Deprecilion
and Arnorlisalion o 7 TE
Honus Disallowed due to non-payment 13 {7 (20]
Prevision for Graluity (5) (13) (18]
Prowiamon for Leave Encashment {11} (1) {13
Provision for Expenses {1} 0 {1
Provision for doubtid debts on Non Performing Investmenis (111} - (1141)
Impairamant alBowances of Fmnancial Assets (7381} 2113 {8,27T)
Adyusimenls penainng to Income and expense recogniton
based on Expecied Interest rato (4] - {4
Leases 72) B (G4}
Others - OCI m 10 (i c
Total s Ll C2 7,538) 17 {10 {5,431}
=% Ty
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39 Retrsment Benefit Plan

€l

a}

£

In accoedance wilh the Indian Accounling Standard on (IND AS-18) - "Employee Benalits™ Ihe Tolowing dedosures have been made

Defined Contribution Scheme

Ein Lakhs
Description March 11, 2021 March 31, 2020
Employer's Contribuban o Provident Fund 12 1
|Emplayer's Caniribution 1o Pensien Fund 13 12
Total 25 24

Defined Benefit Scheme

Dbhigation in respect of employee’s gratuity fusd scheme managed by S8 Lile Insurance Company Lid of
India i& datermined baged on achuanal valusticn wsing the Projecied Ui Credil Methad, which recogezes
each penod of serdor 85 greng nise o addilional unil of employes benel enilemean and measures each

unil separaiely (o budd up the final obligaton;

Principal Assumptiong used n determining gratuity and post employment benefits are:-

Acturial Assumptions March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Discount Rale 6.B2% LB

Future Splary Increases! 10U00%: 10.00%

Rebrement Ags B Years B Yenrs

(A5 % of [ALM (20124 |ALM [2012-14)

Monshty Fata 1) L. Monality Ultimate Maralty

Tabda) Table
Projected Unit Credd|  Progected Unit
Method Meshad Credid Mathod
Changes in Present Value of Obligation
¥ in Lakhs
Farticulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
&} Present Walue of obligation s the begnning of the yesr 141 104
|} Interest Cost E| B

c} Past Service Cosl .

d) Currenl Sendce Cost 12 1
) Benedils Paid [E}]

f} Actuarial (gaing { boss on Obbgation 12 18

Present Value af bhll?ﬁ‘.m al the end of the year 171 A4
Changes in Falr Value 6f Plan Assets

¥ in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a) Fair yvake of plan assats al the beginhing of the year 749 ag
) Fxpecied Retim 5 7
) Past Service Cost -
d) Contribwtions .
&) Benefits Psd 4] -
1) Actuarial gam [ |Loss) on Flan Assats F {16)
) Fair valie of plan assets at the end of the year B2 bl
|y Funded Status B3] (63
Actwrial gaindoss recognimed
¥in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

a) iciusrial (gaan) | loss fee the yeas - Ohligation ¢ 12 18
b} Acluarial (gain) / loss fée the year - Plan Assels 2 [16)
c) Actuarial {gain| / kiss recagnized m the year 11 35
Amounts (o be recognized in the Balance Sheet:

o Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
) Present Value of abhgation e the and of the year 171 141
b Fer vabue of plan assets al tha end of the year B T
c) Funded Stalus (@5} (B3}
i} Mt liabilily tecognized i the Balance Sheet ES B3




N Expenses recgnized in the Statemant of Profit & Loss:

Parliculars March 31, 201 March 31, 2020
a] Cumenl Sefvice Cosl 12 10
b) Past Serace Cost :
t] Intaras Cosl 49 B
o] Heburm on plan assels 5] (TH
#] Mal Achsanal (gain} / ks recogranad in the year 11 aL
1) Inleresd on Fund Balancs nol recognised earfer - -
a1 Expnsesiincome) moognized in the Statemaont of Profic &
L nsE 27 L]
g} Investment Details of Plan Assets
Rs. In Lakhs

[ Particulars

[Assels managad by nsurance scheme (100%)

az |

h} Balance Sheet Recondiliation

Rs. In Lakhs
Farticulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opering Net Liabilcy [53) (16) =
Exp as above 27 46
Ermployers Contriulion - .
[Arowmnt Recognised in Balance shest (30) {63}
1) Amounl Fecognised n oument year and presous b years
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Defmed Benehl Oblygatian 17 141 104
Plan Assels B2 78 BE
|Surphis)Defici [T 63 16
Expenience adustments on plan habilies Loss! (Gain) 12 18 L]
Expenence adusiments on plan Assets (LossyGain F {165 5
d)  Maturity Analysis of Projected Banefit Obligation: From the Fund
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Projected Benefits Payalde in Fulure Years From the Date of Reporting
WilEhin ha next 12 monitis A 10
2nd F ing ¥ ear B 10
Ard Folloving Year [ 12
4th Fallowang Year T 10
£t Folowing Year 16 11
Sum of Years 6 To 10 67 T

K}  Sensitivity analysis

Heasonably possible d'lﬂ_'lﬂz: al the reporling daie o one af the redevant actuanal assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affecied

the difined benef obbigaton by (he amaunts Shown bedow

March 31, 2021 Marcih 31, 2020
Incriase Decroase Increase Decrease
Discount mbe (1% masvernent) 154 181 131 154
Wiithdrawal Rate (1% movement) 1648 174 140 145 |
187 156 152 13!_

Fulure salry growsh (1% movement]

Compensated Absences

The obligation for compensated absences is delermined based on achsarial valuation using the Projected Uil Credil Method The acluarial liahilily of

Compensated Absences (unfundad) al acourmulaled prvleged leaves of the employees of the company as al year end is green bejow

| March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020 |

|Pmvileged Lesve

173

41 |

Notes:

The Company expects b contnbute s, B9 Lekhs to Gratuily fund in 2021-22




40  Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities:
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according lo when they are expected to be recovered ar settled.

?inLakhs
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Within 12 months After 12 months Total Within 12 months | After 12 months Total

Azsets
Financial Assets
GCash and Cash Equivalents 872 - g7z 187 - 187
Loans* 1,22 572 - 122572 1,113,956 - 1,153,956
Investments - 0 0 = 0 0
Other Financial Assets 1,476 241 1.717 2,738 262 3,001
Mon-Financial Assets
Current Tax Assets (Net) - 504 504 - 843 843
Deferred Tax Assets (Met) - 4 616 4 616 - 5.431 5,431
Property, Plant and Equipment 1,089 1,089 - 1.231 1,23
Other Intangible Assets - 5 5 - 11 11
Other Non-Financial Assets 283 - 283 180 166 345
Total Assets 1,25,303 6,466 1.31,769 1,17.062 7,944 1,25,007
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Debt Securities 57 675 B 57675 47,230 8,882 57222
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 36,674 - 36,674 31,726 - 31,728
Other Financial Liabilities GB2 549 1.231 1,054 703 1,757
MNon-Financial Liabilities = ' 2
Provisions 70 184 254 - 201 201
Other Non-Financial Liabilities g52 - 852 855 - BSS
Total Liabilities 85,953 733 96,686 80,865 10,896 91,762
Net 35,082 33,245
* Represents Loans net of provision




& Capiial

i Cagital Managemest
The Cormpany rarduing an aclively managid cepisl haca io cower nsks nherent in the business and s meeting the capital sdequicy iegurements of Resaree Bank of India. The Compamy’s abjecifee, when

anaging Capial i the pegoeg msesaman of Company's itks, hiw e Compeny iieads 10 mdgale TEse nsks and how much oeem and hokere capial s necessany afied comilning athier mgmng

fachors.
Beng an MAFC-A), ihe RET requines the Conmany be maenian & meimem cipeal (o sk weghied assets mio CCRART) mnsshng marmgm Tie | Capeal of T0% @a? & comtsned Tier |4 Tier | Capesl ol 15% of

il agQIEgE mel wEghted aswls. The captal managermen pmoess o e Compssy sesums 18 manide o heslthy CRAR ai all the imes

Frgulatory Capital A i March]
) As ai March 31, 390
Tiei | Capaal FL L] 0T
Tier 11 Capkal - 2,000
Tl Capital IHAE BT BT
sk Weighted Assels 1331958 134T0
CRAR
et [ Capis (%) FNOTH ik
Tier || Capial (%) 0.00%| EE
Fegulainry capial consmts of Ter 1 capdal, which l:,mvm shlr: :m‘ll shars preraum. relnesed samangs inchading cument yesproMs. Cedan sdjimimests are made b WD AS-besed imsuly snd resoroes.
a e ptribed by RAI thﬂl:ﬂilim , Salijiend 1o it Bimis as g the deeclons of ihe RBI
i AR Decusmin & Svess Srenariss
Owe o the mosl amporam ool for. capsal plannng and capterng rsks of the etepise & he ICANP Docwment. Anmsaly Be Composy pepaes iy 10 based on the sudited fnancals, ldure business plas
nnd, Siress Seeninok Tha Besi Sceano paplured i the |CAAP Documeni are quarerdy compaeed with e achual perlormance sed g up %o the i By quardeily M The Marag At

Trigger AT and Comedtes &ohion (CA) are maled € ihe Sress Soenanin aokaly raienislizes dunng ey eping guake
Loy airess sonnmos which are bull and discussed in [CAAP we

i norease in NS fevel requisng ghen proyesdon

i) Liwge fimuds i ihe siadand sssets of e Qompery and stEly af the Compasy b prosada Tof them

W Taghienng ol Me bgualy m e markel and mabiny of the Company o mise fnds thmugh Commercial Papers [CPs} al reasonable niie and 13 impad an 1he overal sverage cost of funds asd profeabilly,
The shpulsbed Maragemen Acion Triggers (AT & e o5 under =

iF MAT - Incrasds m g Cosl of Funci By 108 Basis Poinls sisce last resisan an infecest Raie mairu — Beves of interest Bale Mabr by ALCO.

i} Mew frsuds evcesding 7% of FIU &5 al e Beginsing of B Fnancdel Year - Revew by OOC-|

AT - Fresh NP A noaey guiitei excoedng 5% of Gross NP gz ol the end of previous quarder - Revews by CCCA

The Cormecinem Addion (EA B nfaled w pe e noed

Thi ICAAP Dotument (5 W be revdesed annoally based o e actaal peih of T T i i e ik, B Plan tod the cemend peie, Cagnel piguagrmem (o grew, dnd afier faclonng in ihe
Shress Scemannd baded on ihe past dilh “H Annual lCASP mm # i he placed bedore e Bnl'ﬂ Jor mpproend! thiough AWCH,

(I —

il Categuiies of Financial nstruments:

I
| Amaiced Al Deamad Coal Total
| cost| Al Fai Valus Thesugh
| o lous)
Financial Assets
[{anhs e sl E quvslenis (15 LI
Loans [FFRTH [FFRir]
(1] [1]
1707 (K ik
1,38, 760) (] - 1,38, 761
5T ETH PR
1 IEETE TRV
[FET] [FEI]
] W at Warch 31, 000
[ T P — T T Totad
| 0¥l bt or foas
To7 L
IREEE Tii0E
1] [1]
T 3001
A7, 144] o . ERERLL]
1A [1F7r]
LiR 51,728
1737 LN T
42 Faw Vabue Meagursmesd
Fair wahie & the price thot woeld be recesed ip sell @n aeasl or pasd b0 fmnsfer & bbbty o s omdedy = P pal [0 masl advaniag § Mkl & ihe dale under oareni markel
condmions jLa., i e i), regaediess of whathes ihat price is direcly observable or wsing 2

The Company evalustes the signis ol Tn | ickinureivia el Farieisl y of the in the francal sisterments as they ol a Righ degree of prigement anid swlrealion

uheniarly in deleemining e camyng ualues o Neancisl ssvets s Batsilies al tha baleece sheet doe, Fain s B A i " usirg valaition Echsques Bd esumates which, 1o the
udgmpqnﬁg_wmmtﬁm.fuhmmlddmmﬂﬂhilmm Changes n fhe observatibly of signfcasi veluation npuls coes matenslly aflect the L vakes of fnancal
masauments, |n desermining the saluatios of fhancial esiroments, the Compaey sakes judgemenis on B amouints rewnreed fo corle for model eed waluation fiba, which cover bolli Level 2 and Level 3
strummenls, and The sgnifiin sabsalion pegitents i PEsgec of Lewnl 1 rmiumess,

Enid Walye Hearchy

In order in show hire Lain vadies have Deen devibed, Bnancial instruments ae dissified based on @ herarchy of valuaton lechnigues, a5 explined below

Asdiets and Rebiklies camed al tar value o Tor which T eslues are disclosed have besn clesafied inin Beee el accoming 1o the ohservabilty of e wgrifican inpals used o delemning the fair values.
Changes in the ckaervibily ol sgniicani wilusSon neuls durng Be epaiing period may mseh in @ Eeesfer of assets and Kabdlics withis the fi e Seanhy. The © ¥ - fransters

Jewik of the T vike ¥ Wt there i signil mlnvllhlfl'hr.tl-willllrlulurl.hu!rwlnl'nlmlrmﬂrdlhlnpul.nlumn'uhdlmmuﬂlilllhilﬂdﬁlﬂl‘!ﬂm#ﬂﬂ

Ll 1. Fairvalue imeasurements pe Bose defmved from weadjusied quoled prices in active markess for ideshics] syt o Babidies
Lewsd  Fair walos measuiginents ae ihose whh guoled prices for shilar Faliuments o sclive markeis or quoted peces 1o idestical o sindas instrumenis in sciive mackets and finanoal estumests valkoed

s ing modes whene all sgnicant inpuls e ohienable
Lewel 3: Far valse measuements are those whprn leasd pne npul which toukd have a significan elfed an the instrement’s valusbon s aol bated on obiersebls meksl dals

The followang takde shows an analysi ol s ial i dad wi fuar wulun by lovel of e lal vales Besrarciy
As it March 31, 2920
i Al FYTIRL
ERTERA Levelt Teveld Leveld Toial
Irve sirme s a - = [i]
Fair valus 10Chsgoe

Mvestment ol fair vabss through peofil and bags
For mumstenent al [ walup Birsugh pralt and beks, valuaion are gone using qusted from aclive markets or o publishod el Assel Vel of the seeiiment o fe measuersent dale,
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Fruncaal Risk Managemeit

Intreduction
The Company has operssans in dedin . hasdguecered i Mumbal wih len ionches somss indin Wiist nsk & shenen o the Company's odiviies, 1 & manages ihroogh an misgraed risk manageren

rnmewerk e i swnal Fasesok of 8 parenl Comgany We Stale Beed of Indie, nokding orgasyg iertilicannon. messweman and monioeng, suljecl 5 sk lmis and oiber conirsis, This precess af nsk
managemeni & criical by Be Company's contsing prfiabily and each adisicual within e Compiny & bl for S sk e 5 refrtng bo bes ar ber nesp The Company = d in
crdi o, buaity ek and skl nsk 0 ek sl 10 vaiou quitiary pnd complumee rses
Risk Marisgemssm Framesurk |
The Gompesy wndarakes @ lormsd mek sssessment saraen sresally bo proscively demiy @ risks and enswe sl possitie srareges io conml & magaie o pursen of schevng he Company's obyedive. Every
depaml is responsible far ddemification o ther ks and puiting B s P Feb Comnl s Sl Aasrsren FCSA Template Thi conssidatod REEA Temjiann & anilyrad by 1he Chisl Rk Ofice: and the
Managing Deestor ol e Compeay e o S n jud up Bsfom B Rk Managemenl Commities o the Beand and Board of Ciredors annually o thes meeing dor amendmen snd resew,
Thee Manngesan of Rk in Be Compiany d inseced thivugh complisecs wih (he lwd down sysiems and procedues, processes and fisk paramaiers deiafied mn the varioes Manuals vz Assets & Lisbsliy, Credi,
Ciperafans, ALN Policy, investment Pricy, Forign Eschange Operations, IT & IT Seconly HS sed cturls The key ks cilesl 1o B Comjiesy's eganalions ik as wndie
= Sl Rskfnoludig Comsce nirabon as Cooniry Fisi)
= Cipeswhansl Risk
v Ll by Rl
+ Mnrket Bisk{Imeres) feste Bk
+ Complisnce Risk{incledng Legal R !
Tha Compesy s lollowing pelicie s n pace lo mibg e amous lypes of sk
Credil Maniial = Covenng Chest Aisk, Colndry Rk Corcenfiaon Rk Courer Party Bk
- Caperationd Manusl - Far condectng eolue ganud of operptinns of facloning tansaciions @ a Sysldmets manmnme
accomance wih the laid down procedures and msincinns. So as b praves! Fraudulen) and Sespoious Fssacions.
Aasel Liabiy Mesagemest Poley manusl - Liguidily Bisk, bsvestment Manunl = For Market {lrferesl Rale) Risk and Liguidly  Risk and Foreige Exchiege Opetatons manusi
IT Podcy and IT Sacurty Pobcy and BCME = for IT & IT Bysians
Acgaunng Fulcy mssssl - For Ao
A Policy ~Employes Bisk
Compliere Polcy - Complance Risk
Fraimd Bk Managemen Polcy ~Fraud Rag
sk Management Pabcy -
EREs, BCGA Templats, BCSA Manual, Lods Oate Manual, <A1 Manusd & OF
Paobicy of usturcing of fnanoal sences far NEFC
Siake of NPAS e ARG
- Cyler Becurty Manual
= Policy on Presersstion of Documenis

The € idontsdicatinn, 5 and combrol of rsks afecting the hugi gh ke Commiiees

i Thee: Bull of Ddrectons [BOO)

Tre BOD & responsible for overall g of Rk Profe of th Compary and gives direchons Yor flure growth, Tie Boasd mests al leasl & Gmes m 8 wanr o review e guartery mealls snd pedonmesce of
the Campany B may alio sl bebwees quades @ required as per exigen! oicumslances. BOD aho exercises supsrvsion of Company through is duly consiused wubs

Commitiees as folme

[a) Hisk Wanagermesi Commities of the Board

[RMGCH]
Feoly of RMEE B hoview ol Bk Profile of Ihe Company al quadedy intervals and ssue dioedioss for meassresen], msgmion and manesgemen of key rsis of e Compeny. RMCE wil iko peooScally rove the

Fisk Management Polcy sed Compikance thefenl i recemmands miweriments in the Soan
Thur podin ol tha Comerathi s as lollows-

= Feview of Risk Masagemens Pokcy

*  Review ol the ourrent slatus on he nsk s e he i Masagemen Policy and Bepart to the Boacd

© REview f maners o Rk Mansgsmen

¥ Rmmmﬂwm:mmmmgcunmnmuu

) Executive Commisies of the Boand (ECH)

To raeire the MIS refating bs Busimngs Peofly. BPAS and Slressed Assels and gude the Management is improving the heals of e &ise Porticho. EGH abio approves amendments (o Assets & Labiky, Credi
Qpermtons, Fores Opemlions, Treasay & Invesiment and IT Manuaks based on pésl sxperiece sad emesgng needs 50 @5 o ersure healiy growas in Top e and bofom line within scceprable rh Lsking

-
ECE alsa sandions Credil Froposals indading renewsl, el | wral L g ¥ powers 0l CCC- wihile ensurieg complance with lad diwe processes snd Fish Appedle pamnistans
Further, dusinlons which do not fall within e sancionng pewers ol the CCC-IPCCC-! are also apgeoved by (e ECA.

Ic} M Commiies of he Board |ACH)

ACH overzees Inanaal 0 nl the Company hy T year-end lisancial Tha intnrnal { Glatiory Audiom sham there obaerasions i reapedive nocountmg perod and keep

ﬁﬂﬂwmwhﬂﬂmﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂmﬂﬁlﬂbﬂn eguscy ol prosesnns, o Acooenling Slandands. B also rewews instances of Inoome kakages cbsensd by e Audiors,

(] The internal Commitiess of e Company ol

rivh mansgemen ane i wader

[a) Asset-Liatility Commesiee [ALCO}

FEniee end Resporsikdites

The Asued Listabty 0 (ALM) & mesemis the Stnuciurl and Dynamic Liguidity Regert (o the Rash Managemanl Comindlan &5 o quarisly Basis and mestings wo hokd svery murnth, The ALM

CominBee femuales the ALN Poluy which i rrwarwnd al sl ence 8 yout, Il any change & meguired, then, e revsed goboy akeg with desred dhange and miknalke 1o the same shal B2 pul wp e e ECE.

L i o B | thEﬁmrmﬂmwuwumwluhmmmmwm

it

ﬂmﬂmnumwlhzmﬁﬁﬂﬂhtt Other L of e met enmpras ol SYPS. HODS of Depenmests -Tretdury, Crediined] Agmin, Atcounis, Merketing, [T, Rk
. Op . Dl Minrusg N i ‘hrmltiﬂmmmlw

.l.l.curm-mﬂl miesets o mmonthly mmhwuhmnmm-mmmmm
- Enal of lusts — Cansianig the prraiing ksdly fasdion and ifum scrnes

- i Rutes, afier ing m the Cost of tusds ard Tuium bquidity scenarnio.
- Asset - Lbiy pasison ol fe Compary,
= Inierest rate soenano

- Ugurilly Hiis Exposune Hewew

) Cupumal Crodil Cormnilles | wnd i
& af Ciwdl P b inchebig réndwl, ank anil i} #re within Ther disorelonary prwers, whie ensunng complance wih lail down pocesses and Risk Appeife parameless. Furher,
cartain Dranches havs heen gt ey e b sincln UC Bils DBCounng Fackiy (e di ian rnwfinnmibnng sl epsin By 70N G (8% apnclens by the sald Drenches sm Commiled by the COC-
W &n a menthly batie Further, dandhone by COE-I wu awownid By CECAL

A sywopsis of Mhe vanous risks faced by the

Commqany and thes mtigation is as follees! |

&) Credit Bk
Emtmmmmummm-mmt,ﬂuuMMhmmu Edugale g = | lnsa o the
Factormg Fac#y om he Comgesy 10 Sseces eecoursed 10 him in e event of IEhI.I. by the rlnblnr () in

Coredie MSigaiios meassures

Toseduce et e ced) Rk, The Company has sopted inlowng prackess-
= Clieni wise Exposure Limit:

Thee auxgpesun an sach singin b and grogp ol are resircied wihis @ rasmum bmil prescribed by the REL which & &S under
Single Banower Re 1% o

Bonowei Geoun By 45 s

Debicrs Exposuee Limit:

Diebiors. ore dissfied ino o oisgeies (e, ol

debinr and urenles dabine.

T Rlasrmiim E xposiie un.wndﬂmu jie et f sl sty i esdnicind sy under

pany. Credd Bk for e Company & the rsk of defauk by the Chend avaling the
payment on due daie for the iecinied insices desws s him

Ciebiaor Ratirg Ampent of ExpasureAs. in ors)
A 40
B an
[ il
The masimim exposure s o Snghe Usester Dobiars n reaped of 6 et hae bean foed a3 under
Coraitution Amourt of Exposure(RE in orsh
Pulshc / Pl Lid Comgany 5
Fanripridap | Prgeetomhip Fam 1
B) Operational Risk

Operalional Risk v & ok of losses resuling from inodequale or faled imemal grocesss, people and Systerms o from exiemal events. This defiohion inciudes Regal fisk, IT Rk and Outicurcieg Rek bl excades

sirategic and repotaninnsd rigk,
The eperatiosal risks relating 10 he spatfie & Company involve
Wy Frmuxdylent Transactmns i}

W ) DwErsion of Furds
i} Disnuplion af business




Operatsonal ek Mitigation measunes
Lach depnitiennl of the Compesy meiniloosly fobows niles or gualekne meaned o eicpecie. manusls o cored apeeshbnal s Funther, e inismal Aide Syssem of e Compsny B ey obusl o

While g debersemeni ol teciomed o
Pl chamiers Tt ity delechon, misimizalios) of Fasdulenl Imnsactions. Campany has a Boand apgemved pobcy io deal with Fraud Fask,
Tra Commguny has & Bwsness Commuty Plan [BEF and DRP. Back-up senver s malsiaisen af Bangakice [nutsoured b & senace provder NetMage Sohnans B Lid) for oorimdy @F speiilons and fe 80P

e iy being maimtsingd & Pune Branch of ESIGFL. The BCF 5 being besed on penwical inlervaly.
Ao Iechuti on and uthornizaliss of Wwoees 1o facionng and Mlecason o culedions. inempl Ausl s s imparent mechansm (0 deec nos-

miligats Operatins Rk
ﬁ; are relesand Ba (he Weilllsg Capnial BEsnker enly in erdure Thi there ane na deession of lunds, we da hine a nigoeous. sk rusnd imemal (Cononrent) Ausdi
il

The Cperation Manus desik, Sy arg| Procudune and P

enmplante, suspicious tnsations and H.I.ﬂl!l remedial measures. The ECH has #e pves 80 amend B Manusl, s per nrmerging noods and sogescies sl gnnusl Revdew 15 10 e pot up fo the Boang

€] MWaiket Risk

Farke] s i fhe risk ol loies 0 posdion tben by the company which aiises fiom movements o marke] pioes. The Company B expmed (0 only Inieres) Raie Fisk due 10 B bormeng programmee oo e
marke

Inferest Mate Bizk

Inteeest Fasle Rish meferm 1o Be nak aisccsilp wih (he @S sl @ ihe ninmil e, Adverse mivemenl woulkd imaly reng nienest mies on lubies ond taling miees) yelds on the meals. This s e
tegyest sk which the company ces. K anses beoasse of maturiy s re-prong msmatches of ssets and kabiklies.

Markel Risk Nibigation mesyarms |

Thie Majodiy of The Comgany's sdvances and Bomewings of (he Company siE shon Seom in salure (opte 00 days) In case of ey adverse mavement in inlerest Rate, the Company can ey pass on e
inereased cost of fends to the Clients.

Fusthid, dee 1o 100% backes Ines of credit, n case of sharp iscreass in P berrmeng ees, Company can swtich over i banks Ines of credi:

Evary monts ALCD ekels aivd snenfars the Cotl, sad matnly prodle of Munes beorowed and accondinghy ieanes Pat Benchmel rled fof virous jeodets wie, OF, RF, EF, LCEX and LCBO.

A4 negands Forex sk, the Compary ulBsey. the Fores fne of Credd fem Banks anly (o ®e eden of Export Factonng Cuesianding with avernighl opes posiion resiicied In LSD $0000 onty, as agnns) LISD
00,000 pererifid by the REL The same & misiond on a Daly ared Woetly Bsi. In ciese af any shanfall o pecess o oopen postion fom he preacebed lsit of USD SO00G, e position & regularized threugh

prchazs o sake of S0 from bme b ma,

The Compuany ievesis sunpius funds im approved Deeesmgii[Debt) funds 1o eam same 16t vis-d-wis e cadh

The Guidelmes Gomlinid A s Tinasuny & weedmest Ml on Laueily Bech wp, Investmenl & inmporary Sumples funds, congucd of from { med n'hnlcil'lne peed enporing mechanism cas b amenidad kom
b 1 e, Subjec] fo apperoval by e Board.

O) Liguidity Hisk

Liuidily itsk is Sefed & the risk that the Company wil encaunles dificuly in mesting ohigat wi fi | bahiities Tl are sefll? by delveing cash of anofer fnanciol sssel, Lauasly risk
armes because ol the possEally (hil the Compeey mghl be ohibie b med & peymenl sbbgations when they B des o3 8 resolf of misvaiches in (he Bming of the cash fows usder bofh noemal aod siesy
crrumsares, Such scenanos oould oocur whes fundng nesded for Bguid sssel postions & noe sadalie 10 e Comgany on aceaplabin terme To Smil s fisk, hias e for o e i
funding sources m addiion 10 By cone depoid) base ared peopled a palicy ol masaging sssaty with liquidiy in mnd and monkeong fuiure cas® Aows and kguidiy on a daily base. The Comgany has developed
e P and coetmgency plans far gang ity 1tk
The Ligeidily Rk relaliag 1o e Compeny & imnoteby B repdy B bomowngs Tom e msdo
The Compasy has Solowrsj ssurcoy ol hesis
- Ghaew Copelil
« Reserves & Suplus
- Hion Cofrerlithe Debemares
- Commencial Paper (1-30 days mabury)
- Bank Fred of Credil [Doenesic & Famign)
To e lhgpediy risk, Company bas g
policy that the fotal of:
i Lindsmwmn, cammitied fupes Goelnes
i) Invesiments i bgud nsiromenis
should abwmys exvend sggregste of short 1amh deed loses wih no surety of rell over. and CP's faling dee wiihin The next one week.
Th:rufnr: EMGFL hos backep lnos of Crodd from Renks Io meet the 100% of the ofher shiel leemAnlable resoumes and mgaie liquickly reis 81 sry pomi of tme,
jused & Conlisgency Funding Plan & & pan of s Asse Listilty Monsgement Paloy

Eronmpllrln Risk
Compkance itk B W Cumenl and prospecies msl 10 eamiogs o caplal ansing friom volalions o 0r Noik-Gosh with s, suibes repudationn, prescibed prasioes, memol polices . and procederes, or
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I A5 116 - Leases, has become applicable effective annual reportmg penod beginning Apnl 1, 2018 The Company has adopted the

slarndard beginnmg Apnl 1, 3018, using the modifed retrospective approach for transition. Accordngly, the Company has nol restaled
the comparative information, rstead the cumulative effect of initially apelying Ihe standard has been recogrnised as an adjustment 1o
the opening balance of retaingd eamings as on Apdl 1, 2098

i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheel

Thir balance sheet shows the followsng amounts relating 1o leases
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Fin Lakhs

Right to use assats

Buildings 367 4B
Lease liabilities

Lease liahilities 549 703
{ii} Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss

The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relabng 1o leases:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
[Buildings 186 214 -
|

Intermst expense (included in finance cost) 52 68
Expense relating 1o shorl-term leases (mcluded in cost of goods

sold &nd sdministrative expenses) 26 -
Expensze relating 1o leases of low-value asseis thal are nat

shown 3 3
Expense relaling to vanable lepso payments not includaed in

lease - ‘
The otal cash outfiow for leases durning the period 303 314
Expectod Credit Losses

Impairment Assessmesnt |
The references below show where the Company's impairment assessment and measurement approach 15 set out in this report. it

should be read in conjunction with the Summany of significent accounting policies

The Company applies General approach to provide for credit losses prescrbed by IND AS 108, which provides 1o recognsed 12-
months expected credit losses where credil nsk has not increased significently since mitial recognition and to recognied lifetime
expecied credil losses for financal instrumants for which there have been significant increase in credit risk since initial rl:\:ugﬂ‘lmn

considenng all reasonable and) supportable information, including that of forward looking.

Drefinition of Default
Thie Company considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impalred) for ECL calculations in all cases when

the borrower becomes 90 days pasi due on is contraciual payments.

The three stages reflect the general patlern of credit detenoratan of a financial instrument. The differences in accountng between
stages relate to the recognition of expectad credit losses and the calculation end presentation of interest revenue

Stage wise Categorisation of Loan Assets The company categorises loan assels into stages based on the Days Past Due stalus

- Stage 1. [0-30 days Past Due] Il represenls exposures where there hes no? been & significant increase in credit nsk since initial
recognition &nd 1hat were not credit impaired upon ongination. The Company uses the same oriferia menticned in the standard and
assume that when the days past due excesds 30 days’ the risk of default has increased significantly, Therefore, for those loans for
which the days past due s bess than 30 days. the Company recognises as a collective provision the portion of the [detime ECL
associated with the probability of default events eccurmng withm the next 12 months,

- Stage 2: [31-80 days Past Due] The Company collectively assesses ECL on exposures where there has been & signdcant increass
in credit gk since initial recognition But are not credit empared. For these exposures. the Company recognises 8s a collective
provision, a lifctme ECL {ic. reflecting the remaining Metime of the financial asset)

- Stage 3. [More than 80 days Past Due] The Company identifies, both collectively and individually, ECL on those exposures thal are
assessed as credd impaired based on whether one or more events, thal have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
al 1hat asset have occurred, The Company use the same criteria menbonad i the standard and assume that when the days pasi due
excaeds ") days’, the default has ocourmed,

Far Domestic Faclonng
The management has adopted a provision matrx based on Transition Matrix Mod&l' (basic) model for amving at the Probabiity of

Defaull. Basic model used for armang at the Probability of Defaull is the Flow Rate! Transiton Matr: Model. The Managemant have
taken guarter wise histonc data for the Last four years 1o amve at the Probability of Dedault (PD)

For Export Factonng
The company has considersd PO in case of expon facionng as follows, Entire perfarming Expart Factanng Portfalio s under the Two

Factor Moded whersin the exposure i covered by the PUG from the import factor. Due to availabilty of cover from import factor the
dedingquency in the Export Factofing is negligible,

The exposure is secured by the Payment Under Guarantes (PUG) cover given by the overseas Import factor. Therefore, additional
0,50 % provided towsards future defaull seems adeguate and thus total 1.00% of on the entre partfolio of Export (actonng portiolio is

Credit Cruality Analysis —
Fin Lakhs
Particulars Stage 1 Slage 2 Stage 3 [Total
Outstanding | Tmpairment Cutstanding Dutstanding Impairment | Impairment
Loan Losses Loan Loan Losses Losses
As at March 2021 1,417,841 1.977 FTE 17,062 13,331 15,208
As al March 2020 1,056,508 B70 5633 20,638 17.211




Write off policy
*The NPA accounis where despiie best efforts recovery is not forthcoming. Such accounts are cribcally examined on case lo case
basis and are recommended for wide off 1o Executive Commitiee of the Board.

Executive Committee of the Board has full powers for write off of NPAs and no authonty below thal has been vested with any power in
this regand.”

Impact of COVID — 19 on the Co o taken to deal

Dwring 1he penod Agal to July 2020, the impact of Cowvd-18 and consequent lock down was evdant in the performance, The Company
had redrawn #s projection and sbrategies accordingly. Howewer, things have starled locking up since August 2020 and this has
resulted in improvement in Company's perormance,

Measures taken to mitigate the impact of Covid-19

Fallowing measures have besn taken by the Company to mitigate the Impact en account of Covid-19

. In respect of 'Terms Loans' Board's approval is in place to grant a moratonum of uplo 3 months on payment of all instaliments
falling due between 1.3.2020 and 3152020, in accordance with the RBI's notification dated 27 3. 2020 tiled 'Cowd-19- Regulatary
Package'.

N For Standard Assets, compnaing Domestic/ Exporl! Reverse Factoring Facilitios snd 'Factoring Unit’ purchised on TReDS as of
1,3,2020, Board's approval obtained to grant on a case-to-case basis in respect of requests received upto 31,6 2020, extension |
deferment upto maximum 3 months from the invoice due date in respecl ol mvoices falling due for peyment duning 1.3.2020 t8

31.5.2020
. Management's & ECE approval otained far revision in the 'Prudential Morm for *Sub-Standard Asset Classification’ from "6

months” 1o "3 mantha® in respect of the 'Factoring Assts Portfolio’ in compliance with the RBI directives. The Board approval is being
obtained in their meeting scheduded for 26.04.2021),

. Ertire Export Factonng |Portfolio Backed by Import Factor's Credit Cover is under the FCI Framework, Client's request for
extension of time for payment of the invoice by overseas deblors being examined on & case-lo-case basis subject to receipt of the

Import Factor's consent for the extended credit tem
. Extension of time for payment of the Bills Discounted Under LC granted enly aller receipl of Due Dale Confirmation for the

extendad period from the LC Issuing Bank.
" Created Addional Provision @ 0.25% (amounting to Rs 218 lakhs) on Standard  Unsecured Assets peraming o Domestic
Faciorng, Export Factoring and TReDS &s on 31.03.2021.

Einancial Impact on Loans and Advances

a) The Company has not made any addtional provision on the Gaold Pool purchased from Mis. Muthoot Fincorp Lid as per REB| crcular
dated 17th April 2020 as there was no outstanding amountiunder Meratonium) as on 31.03.21,

b) The Company has made an additional prowsion of 0.25% (Rs.218 lakhs) on the Unsscured Standard Assets as on 31.03.21

) The manpgement feels thet the provisions made is adequate fo cover the losses on impact of Covid-18 on the Loans and
Advances,

d) The Company does not foresee any other impact an the financial pedarmance duo to Covid-1% for the fulure

) Based on cumrent indicators of future sconomic conditions, the Company notes that for the penod ended 315t March, 2021, 1t
evpects to recover the carrying amount of its current and non-cument assets and does not anticipale any imgairment.




4 Suhedule in terms of Farsgragh 13 of Frudential Morms as per Netification fa,, DNES. 183 DG{VL-2007 dated February 23, 2007 lssued by Heserve

Bank af ndia,
March 31, 2031 March 31, 3038
LIASILITIES SIDE Armiuand Amnung | Amousl Amaourd
| Cutstanding Owerdue | Outstanding Cuerdun
Rs. in lakhs A )
1 |iLars end acvarces ovailed by the NEFCa indusive of inteedl sctrund
thersan bl nol pued
) Debeniures
Secured " - -
inpecured [ofier Tan I'aﬁ_wmh-nh: miaring of pubikc deposts”) 10,185 - 15413
() Dieferred Credis - -
i) Tewm Loans | . ‘! =: -
[el] Iriier-corpeate: keans and bomowrg - a s =
2] Commercial g 4T ETT = A2.354 -
{1 Criner L pans. {speafy namure) -
- Cash Credil & B4 4 8BRS -
- Werking Captal Demard Loan 2,000 - 31,504 .
- Shorl Term Loan Faciily 5 - en F
- Bank Cluirdead B0 - =
Ampum Dutstanding |
ASEETS SIDE March 31, 2031 March 31, 7020
R, n lakhs Hs, in lakhs

__f |

2 Break-un of Loans and Advances including bills recenaties [oiher than (hose
inchudnd in (3) below ] @ |

(H} Bacired 28,187 60,753
bjLnsscured 98,708 T
IEJ:ludh Advance Payment of Tax)

3 lm up of Leased Assels and siock an hire and hypothecstion loans
counting lownrds AFC acinities {net of privsion)
il Lenss assels ndudng e rendeh under sueidry debices
(@) Financial lease - .
(b} Cperaing lease s ~
A} |Bleck onhim incuding hire changes under sundry debhors:
(@] Aasets on hie = 3
] Fepoassised Assris - .
i

(i) [Char bans counting breards AFC aciities
|2) Losang whese assels have bean ropossassed - .
k) Loans oiher than (a) abowe ¥ =
# Debls Shown ureder Sundry Dbiors have rel boen Consigemed

4 |Break-up ef invesiments -

Current Invesimenrty
1| Qucked
() |Bhares : Ja) Equiy ; -
| 1] Preference : :
;‘|[|i| | Delenives ard Bonds 4 3
(i) | Limits of mufusl fands - -
v} | Gaverrmant Sepunies . -
i) |Ceners {plense 3pecify) - N
2 Unqueed |
(] |Shams. (s) Exuly R 1
() Prefeence ’ -

) | Debertures and Bonds - -
(i) {Linite af miial kinds -
v} |Govemmend Secunlies - s
livh [Others (please speaty) £ .
Long Tarm imnesiments
1| Cunied
fil  [Shames (&) Equity = ¥
uh Pl o =
(i) |Debenturns and Eands ] £ 5
@i} Units of madual s = -
() |Gowernimenl Sedurises - -
iw] [Others (please speciy) = =
2 Unquoted . |
iy [Gharms 4} Eduity a o
(o} Preference - =
N | Deteniures 3nd Bords = .
i) |Linits of mulusl funds - ‘
vl [Govemment Segurities
(vl Oeners (please spesify) =
- Inwestment in Security Receipt {GH]

1

[T
=
=3




= s group-wine cansllicaton of all leased assets, stock-or-hite and loars and advrces
T, Amoumt pet of provisions
i = == Secuned Unsacuresd Tatal
1 Rsluted Paries
fa| Gubmdianey
i} Comparees in the same goup
i Diher relabed partay . = S
2 Dmer fan related paries FERTH on, 70| 1:.'1_?-E
(Provicus Year) 80,753 1,326 132,078
Total (Cumend year) | n & S5 708 1,57 BAS
Tolal (Previmis year] | . _ & 753 a2 132075
|
-E Irvan wlie e classdcanon of all nvesiments i ard kong lerm) [Bath ed and ui lad
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2000
Barket
ey Market Vabue! Hoob ealue  |Vaiusl Break-
Break-up or falr {net of uop ot Book value [net of
walise or MAY provisions] | value or NV provink |
T Rafabed Parey
ja] Submidianes | . . * %
bl Comparies in the same gioup * - D - a
[eh it ralaled paries - - - ‘
7 Otk than related padies &) 574 . 574 =
Tolal | 574 1] 574 i
* [esckoned @5 Pero B8 amreun| is kess than akhs
i 100% Proesion s hefid in books sganst vestment, fenmednee hook
vakis is 2ero
T |Ciher Informalion
Particulars Sarch 31, 2021 March 31, 3020
Fs, in lakhs Rs. in lakks
i} Grozs Mon Pedorming Asiets
in) Relatod Pamy - =
(b} Oner than Relaled Pames 17082 H A3
(i) Mel Non-Perdoming Assets
(a} Felaind Farty |
() Cithar (han Related Paries 3,730 347
i) Assets acqgured in satisfaction ol debls - -
48 (i} Disclosures as per SEB [Listing Obligation and Discl Requi 15] Regulati 2015 dated 2nd Eeplember, 2015 and Circular
HNo CIRAMOYDFA 87301 3 dabed Cetober 28,2013, el g to contact details of Debenture Trustees.
DB Trusiseship Services Lid
Aslan Buildieg, Ground Floor,
7. R, Eamani Marg, Ballard Estats
Murmbai - 400 007,
Tt 022 - 4080 7000
Fax 022 - GA31 177 / 40RO :‘MEI_
March 31, 2a21 March 31, 2030
Mn Nex
367 167
- B.75% Tiei @ Bones {10 Year] - 2_5_&!.?!]}5
- B.27% Tier B Bands (10 Years) 8,01 2001 26.01.202
[, | of principal of nan comertibie debl seoanlies 2h.08 2020 -
) [i}) Ml s date for the mu’inrlmu
- B 75% Tinr || Borsds {10 Year} | ¥ = zs.mzﬁza
- 8.22% Tier Il Bonds {10 Years) 907 2031 2007202
mmgﬂmmemmﬁ of inbarest
- B.7E% Tee Il Bancs {10 Year) - ZE.MME
-0,23% Tier I} Bonds (10 Years] 907,201 20.07 21
=) Capital redempiion reserve | Deberturs redemgtion masrve. 1,000 1,000
{r Hes Worth, | 5,083 33,245
|4gy Wet Profil Afer Tax, 1,847 'I.E-?'_?"_
i} Eamings Fer § 1,15 1.05

o\
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Disclosure in accordance with RB| Circular No. DNBR (PD) CC No. 002/03.10.004/2014-15 dated 10™ November
2014 and Notification issued by RBI on 27" March 2015 and 10" April 2015 relating to Non Banking Financial

Companies - Corporate Governance (Reserve Bank) Directions 2015:

A Capital to Risk (weighted) Assets Ratio
# in Lakhs
:‘; Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
i. |CRAR (%) 21.07 22.09
i |CRAR - Tier | Capital (%) 21.07 20.48
il JCRAR - Teer Il Capital (%) - 1.60
| v [Amount of Subordinated debl as Tier |l Capital { Bs In Lakhs) = 2,000
v |Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instrements = =
The above disclosure is also as per, Circular No. DNBS (FD), CC. No. 125/03.05.002/2008-2009 dated August 1, 2008,
relating to guidelines for NBFC-MD-S| as regards lo Capilal Adequacy, Liquidity and disclosure norms.
B Investments
Fin Lakhs
'f; Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1 [WValue of Investments - -
i |Gross Value of Investments - -
a) In India 3B3 383
b} Cwiside India = =
il |Provisions for Depreciation
a) In India 383 383
|b) Outside India - =
i [Met Value of Investments
a) In India i} ]
b} Dulside India = E
2 |Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on invesiments
i |Opening balance 383 383
i |Add: Provisions made during the year - =
il |Less; Wiite-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year - g
iv_|Closing balance 383 383
C  Derivaties - Forward Contract
The accounting policy followed for forward confract is as mentioned in 1.9 of Note 1
Fin Lakhs
:E', Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Dervatives - Forward Contract

For hedging




D Disclosure on Risk Exposure in Derivatives - Not Applicable
E Disclosure relating to Securitisation
1 Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisatien/ Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction
#Fin Lakhs
:é Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(i) [No. of Accounls -
(i) |Aogregate value (nef of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC, ¢ - -
(i} |Aggregale consideration { = =
Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in
(iv) |earlier years, =
(v} |Agaregale gainfloss over net book value.
-
2 Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by NBFCs
Fin Lakhs
:é Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2020
(i) |MNo. of Accounls - 2
i gregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold = 12,535
il _|Aggrecale consideralion 12,535
Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transfered in
{iv) |earlier years
(v} |Aggregate gain / loss over net book value = -
# in Lakhs
:(; Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(i} [MNo. of Accounts 3 3
(i} |Aggregate value (nel of provisions) of accounts purchased 30,000 30,000
{iii_[Angregate conswderation 30,000 30,000
Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transfered in
{iv) |earhier vears #
(v} |Aggregale gain | loss over net book value - -
3 Details on Non-Performing financial assets purchased/sold,
A. Details of Non-Perforimg Assets purchased
¥ in Lakhs
;{; Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(1) [(a) Mo. of Accounts purchased during the year =
() Aggregate outstanding 5
(i) [{a) Of these, number of accounts restructed during the year - =
ih} Aggregate cutstanding - =
B. Details of Non-Performing Financial Assets sold.
¥ in Lakhs
:é Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(i |Me. of accounts sold ; -

(i}

Aggregate outslandi

(i}

Aggregate Consideration recelved
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E4 Disclosure in accordance with RBI Clrculer No. DIRNBFC (PO} CC. No. 102/03,10.001/2019-20 dated 4" Novernber 2019
relating Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Comparties:

{i} Funding concentration hased on significant counterparty (Both deposits and borrowings)
as on 31st March 2021

A e > Amount % of Total % of Total
5r. No. Number of Significant Counterparties deposits L tabilitios
Total 11 91,674 NA a5
as on J1st March 2020
] : . Amaunt % of Total % of Total
. No. NMumh i »
5r. No umber of Significant Counterparties Beganis Lisbilltiss
Total 9 85,226 HA 93

* Significant counterparties are those counterparties whose outstandings is Rs. 10 crore and above. (Details as per
Annexure Ci))

{if) Tep 20 large deposits { amount in Rupees crore and % of total deposits)
- Since the Company has been categanzed as an NEFC NDSI, this is nof applicable.

{iii) Top 10 borrowings { amount in Rupees crore and % of total borrowings)
as on 31st March 2021

5r. No. Particulars of Lenders March 31, 2021 % of Total
Borrowings
Total 81,674 9T%
as om-3ist March 2020
Sr. No. Particulars of Lenders Mareh 31, 2020 o)
Borrowings
Total B5,226 BE%
(iv) Funding concentration based on significant instrument/product
as on 315t March 2021
Sr. No Humber of Instrument/product eI A Tatil
Liabilities
1 Commercial Papers 48 000 g0
2 Bank Lines (IN R+FDREK} 36,674 38
3 TIER Il Bonds 10,000 10
Taotal 94,674 98
las on 31st March 2020
Amount % of Total
t
Sr. No Number of Instrument/produc Liabllities
1 TIER |l Bonds 15,000 16
P Commercial Papers 42 500 46
] Bank Lines 31,727 35
Taotal 88,227 a7




(V) Stock Ratios:

As per Ind AS
Sr. No.  |Raties March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Commercial paper as a % of Total Public Funds NA A
a) | [Commercial paper as &% of Tolal Liabilities = 45 45
Commerndal paper as a % of Total Assets 36 34
b MNaon-converible debentures(Onginal Maturity of less than 1 year) os a % of NA NA
! Total Pubke Fund, Total Liabilities and Total Assels
Other Shori-lerm liabilitigs as a % of Tolal Public Fumds HA HA
€ Mher Shor-term Habilibas as & % of Total Liabibbes 50 42
o
Other Short-term liabilties as a % of Tolal Assels a7 31

{W1) Institutional set-up of liquidity risk management

L. Introduction
(2} Sale of iquid assets will yield less than their far value, or
Il. Identification

a) Delays in repayment of loans by the deblors { dients.
b) Inabiliy to raise money from the gvermight market,

Ill. Treatment / Handling of Liguidity Risk

Liguidity Risk is the Probability of logs ansing from a sduation where
(1} The cash and { or cash equivalent is not adequate to mest the obligations to the lenders and other counter parlies.

(3) Liguid assets cannat be sold af the desired tme due 1o lack of buryers,

Events that may lead to disturbance in cash flow posifian m our Company

Pajosdty of the Company's assets are of shod-term nature (Average 90 days) and are funded through combination of Commercaal
Fapers (CPs), Owned funds and banks' lines of credil. As the Banks' lines of credit are normally for a period of one year (renewable

fier one year] but are costly as compared o other sources of lunds, the assets are funded mainly through CPs

rll'lf-ElEEl of & tight liguidity position, wherein Company is unable to raise money through CPs at reasonable rates, the Company may

fund its assets through Banks' lines of credit

hy Lindrawn, committed rupee facilities;

ny point of time.

lng due within the next one week and

BIGFL has backup lines of Cradit frmm Ranke to meet 100% of the other ahort 1ermivelatde resources and mitgate lgusdity nsks al

by Investments in iquid instruments, should always exceed aggregate of short term dated boans with no surety of rollover, and CP's

} & Contengency Funding Plan (CFF) has alse been approved by ECB & the Board for inclusion in the Asset Liability Management

oy, which i being reviewed annuglly.

& par our Report of even date

or Vyas & Vyas
hartered Accountants
irm Registration No. 000530C

Rlace : Mumbai
Date : 29 April 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

H

Place : Mumbai

Date : 29 April 2021

Kumar Pammil

Man
Company Secretary




VYAS & VYAS

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of SBl GLOBAL FACTORS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the standalone financial statements of SBI Global Factors Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021, and the statement of
Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies #hd other explanatory
information(hereinafier referred to as “the Standalone Financial Statements™)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act. 2013 (“Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2021, and profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in pur professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 319 March 2021. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in-_
that context. A '

110 8, Kalpatra Building, Dr SS Rao Road, Parel, Mumbai — 400012 Ph 022-2410182" | -
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Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

1. | Impairment of financial assets
(expected credit losses)
Recognition and  measurement  of | Our audit procedure included:

judgement in determining the quantum of

impairment of loans and advances involve
significant management judgement.

In accordance with Ind AS 109 credit loss
assessment is based on expected credit
loss (ECL) model. The Company’s
impairment allowance is derived from
estimates including the historical default
and loss ratios. Management exercises

loss based on a range of factors.

There is a large increase in the data inputs
required by the ECL model. This increases
the risk of completeness and accuracy of
the data that has been used to create
assumptions in the model. In some cases,
data is unavailable and reasonable
alternatives have been applied to allow
calculations to be performed.

e Evaluation of the appropriateness of
the impairment principles based on

the requirements of Ind AS 109.

®  Assessing the design and
implementation of key internal
financial  controls  over  loan

impairment peocess used to calculate
the impairment charges.

e Testing of management review
controls over measurement of
impairment allowances and

disclosures in financial statements.
We focus on appropriate application
of accounting principles, validating
completeness and accuracy of the |
data and  reasonableness  of
assumptions used in the model. :
Test of calculation of impairment '-
allowance on sample basis for
assessing the completeness,
accuracy and relevance of data.

Impact of Covid- 19

Ind-AS 109 (Financial Instruments)
requires the Company to recognise
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) and

impairment loss allowances on financial
assets, which involves application of
significant judgement and estimates
including use of key assumptions such as
probability of default and loss given
default. The outbreak of the COVID — 19
pandemic in the year 2020 necessitates
that the Company shall specifically
consider the possible impact  of
uncertainties associated with the same in
applving such judgement and estimates

We have identified the impact of and
uncertainty related to the COVID-19

pandemic as a key element

and |

We. have evaluated the management’s
process and tested key controls around the |
determination of expected credit loss
allowances, including controls relating to:

The identification of events
leading to a significant increase in
risk and credit impairment events;
and

The determination of the impaired
credit loss allowances and the key
assumptions including probability -
of default and loss given default
on a forward-looking basis having
regard to historical experiences.

HO — 8. Kalpatru Building, Dr SS Rao Road, Parel, Mumbai — 400012 Ph 022-24101882
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| consideration
measurement of impairment on loans and |

 Information Technology

for recognition and |

advances on account of}
- Short and long term macroeconomic

effect on businesses in the country and its
consequential first order and cascading

negative  impact on  revenue and
employment generation opportunities:
- impact of the pandemic on the

Company’s customers and their ability to
repay dues; and

- application of regulatory package
announced by the Reserve Bank of India
(RBIY on asset classification and
provisioning.

IT systems and controls

The Company’s key financial accounting
and reporting processes are highly
dependent on the automated controls in
information systems, such that there exists
a risk that gaps in the IT control
environment could result in the financial
accounting and reporting records being |
materially misstated hence we identified
IT systems and controls over financial
reporting as a key audit matter for the
Company.

Automated accounting procedures and 1T
environment controls, which include IT
covernance. general IT controls over
program development and changes, access
to programs and data and 1T operations,
are required to be designed and to operale
effectively to ensure reliable financial
reporting

We understood and assessed the
appropriateness of the impairment
methodology developed and used by the
management at the entity level, including
with reference to the possible impact of
the uncertainties associated with the
COVID-19 pandemic. This included
assessing the appropriateness of key
judgements. We tested the accuracy of
key data inputs and calculations used in
this regard.

We found that these key controls as
above, were desighed, implemented and
operated effectively, and therefore have
placed reliance on these key controls and
management's assessment of financial
impact associated with COVID - 19
pandemic for the purposes of our audit of

| ECL and impairment loss allowances,

| Our audit procedures to assess the IT

system access management included the
following:

e We tested a sample of key controls
operating over the information
technology in relation to financial
accounting and reporting systems,
including system access and system

change  management,  program
development and computer
operations.

e We tested the design and operating |
effectiveness of key controls over
user access management which
includes granting access right, new
user creation, removal of user rights
and preventative controls designed to
enforce segregation of duties.

e For a selected group of key controls
over financial and reporting system,
we independently performed
procedures to determine that these
controls remained unchanged during
the vear or were changed following |
the standard change management
process.

HO - 8. Kalpatru Building. Dr SS Rao Road, Parel, Mumbai — 400012 Ph 022-24101882
Branch: 69 Satya Vihar Colony Lalkothi. Jaipur — 302015 Ph 0141-2741978




VYAS & VYAS

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

» Evaluating the design,

implementation and  operating

effectiveness of the significant
accounts related [T automated
. controls which are relevant to the
‘ ‘ accuracy of system calculation, and
the consistency of data transmission.

Information Otheréthan the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report
Thereon '

The other iﬂfﬁl‘l’]‘lﬂliu\'l comprises the information included in the Annwmal Report. but does not
include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The
Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not uxpn:aib' any torm of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility
is 1o read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there 1'-5 a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Husénusihility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) i‘-pcciﬁ:d under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate arccnunli:ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial ccinlmis, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, wheth!cr due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, Management and Board of Director
are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing
]
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as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
ar¢ considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143 (3)i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« [Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that mgy cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required 1o draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to dlease-
to continue as a going concern.
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* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards. -

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors” report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (1 I} of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure - A”, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

I. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

i In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

iii. The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the
standalone Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account. A

iv.” In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind As
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

v. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as".
on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 ) of
the Act,
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vi. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in *Annexure - B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as on 31 March, 2021
on its financial position in its standalone financial statements to the extent
determinable/ascertainable — Refer Note 27 to the standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses. »

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s report under section 197(16):

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2021 has been
paid/provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

Directions of C&AG

As per the directions of The Comptroller & Auditor General of India in accordance with
Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and on the basis of such verification of the books
and records as considered appropriate and available and according to the information and
explanations given to us and as per the declarations given by the Company, we enclose in
“ Annexure — C” a statement on the matters specified in directions issued by The Comptroller
& Auditor General of India.

_ For Vyas & Vyas
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 000590C
Date: 29" April 2021
Place: Mumbai }__,1, —
N0 (SACHIN VYAS)
Partner
M. No. 419656

UDIN: J\ 4\ 3 (5 6 ARAAFE
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ANNEXURE — A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone
Financial Statements of SBI GLOBAL FACTORS LTD for the period ended 31stMarch
2021

Statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016

(Referred to in paragraph | under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement” sectign of our
report of even date)

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative dgtails and
situation of fixed assets.

-

b. The Company has a regular program of physical verification to cover all the items of fixed agsets in a

phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the

nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, the last physical verification of fixed assets was cpnducted

on 31-Mar-2019. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material discfepancies

were noticed on such verification.

¢.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable properties are
still held in the erstwhile name of the Company,

Gross Value [ Net Value
Rarieuior (Amtinlakhs) | (Amtin lakhs) et

(MTice Premises in 79725 | 546.59 | In the erstwhile name of
Mumbai : Global Trade Finance Limitiﬁ
Office  Premises  in T 146.72 10882 | In the erstwhile name §f
Delhi Global Trade Finance Limitiﬁ
Flat in Mumbai 47.83 34.59 | In the erstwhile name of SBI

Factors and Commercipl

| Services Private Limited,

ii.  The company is involved in factoring business and thus it does not hold any physical ihventory.
Accordingly, provisions of clause (i} of the Order are not applicable.

fii.  According ta the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loang, secured
or unsecured to Companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013,
¢
In view of the above, ¢lause (iii) (a), (b) and (¢) of the order are not applicable.

iv.  Inour opinian and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has n
any loans, provided any guarantees and security covered under the provisions of section 185 apg
the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly provisions of Section 185 and 186 relating to i
applicable. The company has invested amounts in one of the fellow subsidiary company ofl pels
section 186 have been complied with.
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v.  Inouf opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits from the public, hence the directives issued by The Reserve Bank of India and the provisions
of sedtions 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there
unden, are not applicable on the Company.

vi.  According to information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
i l':(-nanu::\a of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the
Company.

¥il.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records
of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess angl other material statutory dues
applicable to it have generally been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

A.:t;iurding to the information and explanations given to us, there were no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of outstanding statutory dues as aforesaid at 31* march 2021 for a period of more than six months
from the date they become payable.

b. The disputed statutory due, as detailed below, have not been deposited on account of matters pending
betore appellate authorities:

| Name of the Amount (Rs Period to which the Forum where

| [Statute DALy G D in Lakhs) amount relates dispute is pending
: Ingome Tax | Income Tax, | Rs 47.52 For the Assessment Year | CIT(Appeals)
| Agt. 1961 Interest and Penalty 2013-14 (Rs 47.49 lacs)
| || For AY 2009-10 (Rs 0.03
! | lacs)
i_FI:EF\;it;E‘ Tax | Service Tax and | Rs 57.07 For the Financial Year | Commissioner of
' | Penalty 0l . 2009-10 Service Tax
viii. .-"-.L:;::urding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment

of Joans or borrowing to a financial institution, banks and Debenture holders.

ix.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any money by
wity of Initial Public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year.

v, Ageording to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of
any such case by the management, t

xi.  During the course of our examination and as far as records/details made available and verified by us and
actording to the information and explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration is paid or
provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Companies Acet, 2013,

sfi.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly this clause is not applicable to the Company.
Adcordingly, provision of clause 3(xii) of the order is not applicable.

HO — 8, Kalpatru Building, Dr SS Rao Road, Parel, Mumbai 400012 Ph 022-24101

Rranch: 69 Satva Vihar Colony Lalkothi. Jaipur — 302015 Ph 0141-2741978



VYAS & VYAS

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

xiii.

XiV,

XY.

Xl

Date: 29" April, 2021

Place: Mumbai

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our verification of the records
of the Company and on the basis of review and approvals by the Board and Audit Committee, related
party transactions during the financial year under review are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and details have been duly disclosed in the financial statements as required by
the applicable Ind AS.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our verification of the records
of the Company, there was no preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debenture during the year under review, therefore reporting under clause 3(xiv) is not
applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company. the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with them during the financial year under review; accordingly paragraph 3 (xv) of the order
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has received registration certificate dated 23" March, 2015 from Reserve
Bank of India under Section 45 [A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and is permitted to carry on
the business as NBFC- Factors in accordance with the Factoring Regulation Act, 2011,

For Vyas & Vyas
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000590C

L e

(SACHIN VYAS)
Partner
M. No. 419656
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Annexure — B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone
Financial Statements of SBI GLOBAL FACTORS LTD for the period ended 31* March
2021

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to aforesaid standalone Financial
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act™)

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (A) (vi) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement”
section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SBI GLOBAL FACTORS
LIMITED, (“the Company™), as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our awdit of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

I'he Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (“Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India(“1CAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

O responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
cthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectivencss of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due 1o fraud or error,

We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for g8
apinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. ;
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
aver financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary lo permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements,

-
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 319, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Vyas & Vyas
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000590C

S

(SACHIN YYAS)
Partner
M. No. 419656

Date: 29" April, 2021

Place: Mumbai
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